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STATEMENT OF THE FACTS AND OF THE CASE 

In the Referee's Report of June 2, 1989, he 

found that as to COUNT I of the Bar's Complaint, that 

exhibits No. 19, 21, 22, and 25 which were letters 

directed to the trial judge from the respondent con- 

stituted evidence that the respondent violated disci- 

plinary Rules, DR 1-102(A) ( 5 ) ,  DR 1-102(A) (6) and DR 

7-106(C) (1). DR 1-102(A) (5) says a lawyer "shall not 

engage in conduct prejudicial to the administration of 

justice." And (6) is "engaging in other conduct that 

adversely reflects on his fitness to practice law." 

DR 7-106(C) (1) says a lawyer "shall not state or allude 

to any matter that he has no reasonable basis to believe 

is relevant to the case or that will not be supported by 

admissible evidence.l'(R.AP.1-4) 

As to COUNT I1 of the Complaint, the Referee 

found a violation of DR 1-102(A) (l), "violating a disci- 

plinary rule"; DR 1-102(A) (5) "conduct prejudicial to the 

administration of justice"; DR 7-102(A) (1) "filing a suit 

merely to harass or viciously injure another"; DR 7-102(A) 

(2) "advancing a claim or defense that is unwarranted under 

existing law, I' and DR 7-102 (A) (7) , "assisting his client in 
conduct that the lawyer knows to be illegal or fraudulent". 

(R.AP. 1-41 



This  case w a s  commenced by The F l o r i d a  B a r  on 

i t s  own, wi thout  a complaint  being f i l e d  by any p a r t y .  

The matters  involved are two s e p a r a t e  law s u i t s  i n  which 

t h e  respondent  r ep re sen ted  t h e  husband i n  a d ivo rce  case 

and i n  t h e  o t h e r ,  t h e  w i fe  i n  a d ivo rce  case. COUNT I 

w a s  t h e  LANHAM divorce and COUNT I1 w a s  t h e  BISHOP 

divorce .  I n  t h e  f i r s t  case t h e  respondent  r ep re sen ted  

t h e  husband and i n  t h e  second case he r ep re sen ted  t h e  

wi fe  . 
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AS TO COUNT I - THE LANHAM CASE 

The B a r ' s  Complaint i n  COUNT I c o n s i s t e d  of 

1 7  paragraphs  and 11 e x h i b i t s .  A f t e r  motions w e r e  

made, t h e  c l a i m  of "ex par te"was s t r i c k e n  by t h e  

Referee  on November 3 ,  1988.(R.AP.5) The claim 

had been made i n  t h e  Complaint t h a t  t h e  let ters which 

w e r e  s e n t ,  w e r e  s e n t  "ex p a r t e " ,  (R.AP. 6) and 

a f t e r  a hea r ing  on r e sponden t ' s  motion w e r e  found 

n o t  "ex p a r t e " ,  because t h e  o t h e r  s i d e  w a s  always 

copied.  (R.AP.  5 )  

Continuing aga in  on t h e  LANHAM m a t t e r ,  t h e  

Referee  s e l e c t e d  4 B a r  e x h i b i t s  N o .  1 9 ,  2 1 ,  2 2 ,  and 25, 

i n  suppor t  of h i s  findings.(R.AP.12-18) Included i n  

t h e s e  e x h i b i t s  are a l s o  No. 20 and 2 4 .  (R.AP.13117) 

While t h e r e  i s  no need t o  go i n t o  a l l  o t h e r  e x h i b i t s  

in t roduced  by t h e  B a r  a s  c o n s t i t u t i n g  a v i o l a t i o n  of 

d i s c i p l i n a r y  r u l e s ,  s o m e  of them are important  t o  show 

t h e  n a t u r e  and t h e  background of how t h e s e  d i s p u t e s  

arose and w i l l  be inc luded  f o r  t h a t  purpose a long  wi th  

v a r i o u s  tes t imony e s t a b l i s h e d  du r ing  t h e  t r i a l  which 

took p l a c e  A p r i l  6 ,  1989. Regarding t h e  B a r ' s  e x h i b i t  

N o .  1 9 ,  da t ed  A p r i l  11, 1986, t h e  a t t o r n e y  opposing _ _  

respondent  t h e r e i n  somehow g o t  a c o u r t  d a t e  from t h e  

t r i a l  judge which al lowed on ly  a week's t i m e  between t h e  



t i m e  it w a s  scheduled and t h e  t i m e  respondent  w a s  

n o t i f i e d  of such hea r ing  f o r  temporary alimony. The 

case i t s e l f ,  LANHAM v LANHAM w a s  commenced i n  December 1 9 ,  

1 9 8 4  and t h e  c a s e  had dragged on in te rminably  f o r  

s e v e r a l  reasons .  Outs ide  of t h e  temporary o r d e r  which w a s  

e n t e r e d  i n  January,  1985, it w a s  impossible  t o  g e t  a c o u r t  

d a t e  from t h e  t r i a l  judge f o r  any number of motions which 

had t o  be  made. The t r i a l  judge,  a t  t h a t  t i m e ,  w a s  brand 

new, having j u s t  been appointed i n  t h e  prev ious  yea r  and, 

he  had i n h e r i t e d  a tremendous back l o g  of c a s e s  which w a s  

occupying m o s t  of h i s  t i m e .  

occas ions  a s u b s t i t u t e  judge had t o  hea r  some of t h e  matters,  

f i n a l l y  nea r  September of 1985, t h e  t r i a l  judge s t a r t e d  

hea r ing  va ious  matters i n  t h i s  case. Respondent, having 

g o t t e n  t h e  motion f o r  temporary alimony on A p r i l  11, 1986, 

went over  t o  ask  t h e  j udge ' s  s e c r e t a r y  f o r  t i m e  i n  which t o  

hea r  r e sponden t ' s  Motion f o r  Continuance, because t h e r e  w a s  

no way respondent  cou ld  adequa te ly  p repa re  t o  defend such 

motion which would r e q u i r e  t h e  presence of r e sponden t ' s  

c l i e n t  among o t h e r  t h i n g s ,  who w a s  i n  t h e  Merchant Marines 

and a t  sea a t  t h e  t i m e .  The judge ' s  s e c r e t a r y  informed 

respondent  t h a t  t h e r e  w a s  no way t h a t  respondent  could have 

a hea r ing  on h i s  Motion f o r  Continuance and s t a t e d  t h a t  

respondent  should send a le t te r  t o  t h e  judge o u t l i n i n g  a l l  

r ea sons  f o r  such cont inuance.  That  r e s u l t e d  i n  t h e  l e t te r  

(R.AP.20,T.T 199)On several 
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of A p r i l  11, 1986,Bar ' s  E x h i b i t  N o .  1 9 ,  p o i n t i n g  t h a t  

o u t  and s t a t i n g  a c o n f l i c k  because of ano the r  scheduled 

matter.  (R.AP.19-20,12,TT198)Later on, respondent  found o u t  

t h a t  opposing a t t o r n e y  had scheduled t h i s  matter on a 

a f t e rnoon  t h a t  t h e  judge k e p t  r e se rved  f o r  hea r ing  

matters of contempt, ( i nvo lv ing  non-payment of s u p p o r t ) ,  

and obviously  when he found o u t  t h a t  t h i s  matter w a s  

scheduled a t  t h a t  t i m e ,  such motion w a s  c ance l l ed .  

Respondent went t o  t h e  hea r ing  a t  t h e  scheduled t i m e ,  

found no one t h e r e  and w a s  informed by t h e  j udge ' s  secre- 

t a r y  t h a t  t h a t  p a r t i c u l a r  motion had been cancelled.(R.AP. 

21,T.T.201) B a r ' s  Exh ib i t  20 appears  t o  be  o s t e n s i b l y  a 

le t te r  w r i t t e n  by opposing counse l ,  on t h e  LANHAM case t o  

The F l o r i d a  B a r ,  i n d i c a t i n g  a copy had been s e n t  t o  t h e  

t r i a l  judge. That  A p r i l  1 4 ,  1986 le t te r  accuses  t h e  

respondent  of making "ex p a r t e  communications t o  t h e  c o u r t " .  

(R.AP. 1 3 )  On A p r i l  18 ,  1986 respondent  s e n t  a l e t te r  

t o  The F l o r i d a  B a r  i n q u i r i n g  about  t h e  l e t te r  w r i t t e n  by 

opposing counsel  da t ed  A p r i l  1 4 ,  1 9 8 6 .  The F l o r i d a  B a r  

w r o t e  back t o  respondent ,  ( R.AP.  1 6 ) .  

The i r  response i n d i c a t e d  they  had never had a l e t t e r  from 

M r .  Davis. This  response w a s  inc luded  i n  a le t te r  respondent  

wrote t o  t h e  t r i a l  judge i n d i c a t i n g  t h a t  i n  f a c t ,  opposing 

counse l  had never  even s e n t  a l e t t e r  t o  The F l o r i d a  B a r ,  b u t  

wanted t o  have t h e  t r i a l  judge t h i n k  t h a t  he had done so. 

- 5 -  



The letter from The Florida Bar to respondent dated 

April 24, 1986, by Steven Rushing, Branch Staff Counsel, 

indicated that they had no letter from opposing counsel 

which respondent's letter referred to (R.AP.15-16). 

Respondent's letter of April 25, 1986 and The Florida 

Bar's letter of April 24, 1986 identified as Bar Exhibit 

No. 22, shows clearly that it was sent to opposing 

counsel. Bar's Exhibit No. 25, is respondent's June 12,  

1986 letter to the trial judge, responding to Bar's 

Exhibit No. 24 which was letter written by opposing 

counsel to the trial judge. Bar's Exhibit No. 24, letter 

by opposing counsel dated June 9, 1986 acauses respondent 

of "lying, evasions, pretentions, unfounded and malicious 

charges of unethical behavior, persistent misrepresentations 

of this record, demanding that the trial judge set an 

emergency conference hearing."(R.AP. 17) Respondent's 

letter of June 12 ,  1986 accuses opposing counsel of making 

unfounded and odious remarks about respondent, way beyond the 

bounds of normal behavior.(R.AP. 18) When opposing 

counsel testified at the Bar hearing April 6, 1989, he stated 

that he was disbarred because of a felony conviction.(R.AP. 

23 1 The Florida Bar did absolutely nothing about the 

misrepresentations and deceit of opposing counsel, despite 

DR 1-102(A) ( 4 )  and ( 5 )  and also that EC 7- 37 states that "a 

lawyer should not make unfair or derogatory personal ref- 

erence to opposing counsel." 
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The Florida Bar has been after respondent 

for years, solely because he advertises; not because 

he steals from clients, not because he neglects legal 

matters, not because he represents clients for excessive 

fees, not because he is an alGoholic or drug user. 

Providing low-cost services for routine legal matters 

apparently has upset The Florida Bar and certain members 

of the legal profession in Pinellas County. See please 

respondent's Exhibit (not numbered by the Referee), dated 

February 7, 1 9 7 8 ,  a letter from The Florida Bar to the 

Chairman of the Grievance Committee I'C" of St. Petersburg, 

by a Michael C. Whittington relative to 3 matters brought 

to the attention of The Florida Bar, mentioning not that 

the 3 matters brought to The Bar's attention were violations, 

but that as an employee of "Consolidated Legal Clinics" he 

was assisting another in the unauthorized practice of law. 

(R.AP. 24) See also respondent's answer and 

a 

affirmative defense which attempts to outline problems that 

respondent has had with The Florida Bar solely because he 

advertises consisting of trumped up cases which The Florida 

Bar has attempted to fit into some ethics violations.(R.AP 

25 - 45) In 1978  and up until about 1 9 8 1  respondent was 

employed by Consolidated Business and Legal Forms d/b/a 

Consolidated Legal Clinics, which The Florida Bar put out 

of business because of the claim that this company was 
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operating and doing legal work for which it did not have 

a license to do so. The case was entitled THE FLORIDA BAR 

v CONSOLIDATED BUSINESS & LEGAL FORMS. 386  So.2d 797 

(Fla. 1 9 8 0 ) .  Respondent on his own, thereafter, continued 

to advertise. All of this time respondent was employed by 

this company to do routine legal matters,and when The 

Florida Bar came to respondent's office in late 1977 ,  to 

accuse Consolidated Legal Clinics of practicing law without 

a license, they informed respondent at that time that "we 

are going to put your employer out of business and if you 

don't quit advertising, we are going to get you too". 

Shortly thereafter The Florida Bar sent accountants to 

respondent's office (without any complaint from any client), 

and went over respondent's trust account and other matters 

seeking to find some evidence of defalcation in his records. 

They did not find any. Later on they even sent their top 

accountant from Miami to respondent's office in about the 

year 1 9 7 9  or 80, one Pedro Pizzaro, who spent 4 days in 

respondent's office, auditing respondent's books who found 

absolutely nothing wrong with respondent's books. Again, 

said audit being conducted without anyone ever complaining; 

meaning that The Florida Bar performed this audit all on its 

own to attempt to find some way to put respondent out of 

practising law. Although, this matter is not in the record, 

it is placed in here to show what The Florida Bar has 
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attempted to do to respondent over the years. 

Included also herewith as an Exhibit is a copy from 

the Clerk of The Supreme Court dated January 31, 1983 

showing that respondent had filed a Complaint in this 

court in the form of an injunction to stop The Florida 

Bar from harrassment of respondent.(R.AP. 46) 

In fact the reason this Case No. 63-139 was never 

further prosecuted in The Supreme Court of Florida, is 

because they dropped whatever charges they had at that 

time against respondent. It should be painfully apparent 

tothis court that ever since BATES v O'STEEN that The 

Florida Bar has done everything in its power to restrict, 

limit or to cancel the effects of lawyers advertising in 

Florida by one means or another. Included in respondent's 

Affirmative Defense in this case, was an editorial which 

appeared in The Florida Bar Journal,February, 1985 which 

shows that The Florida Bar has prosecuted attorney adver- 

tisers as a policy because they have never accepted the 

Florida lawyer's right to advertise.(R.AP.43 - 45) 

There is pending at the present time, a move by The 

Florida Bar to restrict advertisers, based again upon an 

Iowa case that went to the U.S. Supreme Court. Of this, 

this court may take judicial notice. These two instant 

cases came on the heels of The Florida Bar suffering a 

defeat on 2 other cases that they had prosecuted against 
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respondent ,  aga in ,  obviously on trumped up charges ,  

which t h a t  Referee  immediately s a w  through as t h e  t r i a l  

of t h a t  matter progressed.(R.AP. 4 0- 4 1 )  
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AS TO COUNT I1 - THE BISHOP CASE 

This  case l i k e w i s e  i nvo lves  a d ivo rce  m a t t e r  i n  

which respondent  r ep re sen ted  t h e  wi fe .  Again, t h i s  a c t i o n  

w a s  brought  s o l e l y  by The F l o r i d a  B a r ,  n o t  by any p a r t y .  

I n  COUNT 11, The F l o r i d a  B a r  a l l e g e s  several matters  which 

la ter  tu rned  o u t  t o  be merely smoke, n o t  v i o l a t i o n s ,  because 

t h e  Re fe ree ' s  Report  made no mention of t hose  matters i n  h i s  

f i n d i n g  of v i o l a t i o n  by t h e  respondent .  Those matters are 

n o t  necessary  t o  go i n t o  except  b r i e f l y .  The B a r  a l l e g e d  i n  

i t s  Complaint t h a t  a t h r e a t  w a s  made by respondent  a g a i n s t  

t h e  a t t o r n e y  on t h e  o t h e r  s i d e  of t h e  case; and, t h a t  i n  an 

a t t empt  t o  engage ano the r  a t t o r n e y  on t h e  o t h e r  s i d e  of t h e  

case i n  conve r sa t ion ,  respondent  asked oneof t h e  a t t o r n e y s  i n  

e f fec t ,  what he w a s  so e x c i t e d  about  t h i s  case f o r ,  a t t empt ing  

t o  draw some conversa t ion  from t h e  o t h e r  a t t o r n e y  r e l a t ive  t o  

perhaps  t o  g e t t i n g  t h e  matter s e t t l e d ,  which The B a r  a t tempted 

t o  claim had some material  e f f e c t  on t h e  p r i n c i p a l  m a t t e r ,  ( a s  

0 

w a s  con ta ined  i n  t h e  Referee's Repor t ) .  Ne i the r  of t h e s e  

matters occur red  anywhere nea r  t h e  chambers of t h e  c o u r t  and i n  

no way w a s  any judge involved i n  any way.(R.AP. 8-11) Accord- 

ing  t o  t h e  Re fe ree ' s  Report ,  however, he only  based h i s  

v i o l a t i o n s  on a s u i t  commenced by respondent  i n  t h e  n a t u r e  of a 

d e c l a r a t o r y  judgment a c t i o n  which a t tempted  t o  n u l l i f y  a con- 

tempt o r d e r  of Judge DAVIS SETH WALKER which w a s  s igned August 

26 ,  1 9 8 5  which w a s  nunc p r o  tunc  t o  t h e  day of t h e  hea r ing ,  a 
- 11 - 



August 9 ,  1985.(R.AP. 4 7 )  I n  t h e  d ivo rce  ac t ion  

i tself  (BISHOP v B I S H O P ) ,  w i f e  w a s  g r an t ed  2 y e a r s  of re- 

h a b i l i t i v e  alimony i n  September, 1983; p r i o r  t o  t h e  end of 

t h e  p e r i o d  of r e h a b i l i t a t i v e  alimony, respondent ,  on w i f e ' s  

beha l f  f i l e d  a Supplemental P e t i t i o n  f o r  Modi f ica t ion ,  ask ing  

for  permanent alimony. S h o r t l y  t h e r e a f t e r  a motion f o r  t e m -  

porary  alimony w a s  f i l e d  on September 2 2 ,  1985,(R.AP. 48-51) 

t o  o b t a i n  i n t e r i m  alimony f o r  wi fe .  

Inasmuch as  t h e r e  w a s  a mar i t a l  home, which t h e  t r i a l  judge 

i n  1983 d i d  n o t  award t o  e i t h e r  p a r t y ,  husband commenced an 

a c t i o n  of p a r t i t i o n  i n  which t h e  p a r t i e s  agreed a t  a hea r ing  

t o  s e l l  t h e  mar i t a l  home a t  a p r i v a t e  sale.  This  o rde r  w a s  

e n t e r e d  February 2 6 ,  1985 which i n d i c a t e d  t h a t  t h e  p a r t i e s  had 

made an agreement t o  se l l  t h e  p rope r ty  by p r i v a t e  sale r a t h e r  

than  have it s o l d  pursuant  t o  Chapter  6 4 ,  F l o r i d a  S t a t u t e s ,  

(which a l lows  t h e  c o u r t  t o  se l l  such p rope r ty  a t  a p u b l i c  s a l e ) .  

(R-AP-52 - 53) The e v e n t s  t h a t  fol lowed t h e  August 26 ,  1985 

o r d e r  of Judge DAVID SETH WALKER, f i n d i n g  wi fe  i n  contempt f o r  

f a i l u r e  t o  l i s t  t h e  p rope r ty  involved wi th  a real  estate  agen t ,  

provided t h e  sole b a s i s  f o r  t h e  Referee  h e r e  t o  f i n d  e t h i c s  

v i o l a t i o n s  a g a i n s t  t h e  respondent.(R.AP. 2 )  A l l  of t h e  

d i c i p l i n a r y  r u l e s  found a f f e c t e d  by t h e  Re fe ree ' s  f i n d i n g s  are 

s o l e l y  based upon t h e  e v e n t s  which occur red  subsequent t o  t h e  

August 2 6 ,  1985 order. Respondent had no communication or  word 

from h i s  c l i e n t  whether o r  n o t  she  had s igned  t h e  l i s t i n g  agree-  

ment by August 1 6 J  u n t i l  much l a te r ,  when he r ece ived  a le t te r  1985 
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from t h e  a t t o r n e y  on t h e  o t h e r  s i d e  of t h e  c a s e  i n d i c a t i n g  

t h a t  h i s  c l i e n t  w a s  n o t  coopera t ing  wi th  t h e  l i s t i n g  agen t  

a s  t o  showing t h e  house, e t c . ( R . A P .  54) The l e t t e r  

w a s  f r o m  Thomas P. Colclough, t h e  a t t o r n e y  on t h e  o t h e r  s i d e  

of t h e  c a s e , t o  respondent ,  da t ed  September 2 7 ,  1985, and 

some te lephone c a l l s  t o  respondent  by him s h o r t l y  p r i o r  

t h e r e t o ,  respondent  w a s  made aware of t h e  f a c t  t h a t  h i s  

c l i e n t  had i n  f a c t  s igned  t h e  l i s i t i n g  agreement, b u t  w a s  

f a i l i n g  t o  coopera te  wi th  t h e  real tors  as  t o  g e t t i n g  t h e  

p rope r ty  so ld ;  respondent  n o t  be ing  aware of what a c t i o n s  

h i s  c l i e n t  w a s  t ak ing  wi th  r ega rd  t o  t h e  p rope r ty  u n t i l  w e l l  

a f t e r  30 days had exp i r ed  from t h e  t i m e  of August 2 6 ,  1985. 

Respondent’s  c l i e n t  had been advised  she could appea l  s a i d  

0 orde r  and so t e s t i f i e d .  (R.AP.56,T.T.62) Respondent’s a d v i s e  

t o  h i s  c l i e n t  w a s  t o  n o t  s i g n  t h e  l i s t i n g  agreement even 

though it meant t h a t  t h e  contempt o r d e r  of August 26 ,  1985 

might be c a l l e d  i n t o  p l a y ,  respondent  d i d  n o t  b e l i e v e  t h a t  

t h e  judge could ,  under Chapter  6 4 ,  F l o r i d a  S t a t u t e s ,  do any- 

t h i n g  i n  t h e  premises  excep t  t o  se l l  t h e  m a r i t a l  home a t  a 

p u b l i c  sale,  and t h a t  t h e r e f o r e  h i s  contempt o r d e r  was*/wholly 

wi thout  any ju r i sd i c t i on . ”  Therefore ,  on and a f t e r  September 2 7 ,  

1985, r e sponden t ’ s  c l i e n t  f i l e d  a d e c l a r a t o r y  a c t i o n  a g a i n s t  

t h e  v a r i o u s  p a r t i e s  involved inc lud ing  t h e  a t t o r n e y s  on t h e  

o t h e r  s i d e ,  t h e  real es ta te  agen t ,  t h e  judge involved i n  t h e  

matter and w i f e ’ s  former husband. The purpose of which w a s  

t o  nega t ive  t h e  l i s t i n g  agreement which wi fe  had s igned i n  * 
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which she had to go to jail if she did not do so. This 

was The Bar's Exhibit No. 6 (R.AP. 47). 

In paragraphs 24 and 25 of The Bar's Complaint, 

it is alleged therein that respondent's client did not know 

that she was suing the defendants named in said law suit nor 

know that she was signing an affidavit of prejudice for use 

in that aforementioned case.(R.AP. 9) Furthermore, 

she signed an affidavib claiming "she was unaware she was 

actually suing the defendants therein for acts out of my 

divorce* * *"(R.AP. 57). the same as alleged in The 

Bar's Complaint, claiming that she was unaware she was suing 

the various parties named in said suit, Bar's Exhibit 9. 

(R.AP. 9) Furthermore, she testified at the trial to 

the same effect and reproduced herein in narrative form is 

her testimony: 

"I was ordered to sign a listing agree- 
ment and to sell the house through multiple 
listing, it ordered me to list it with 
Century 21. Mr. McKenzie advised me that I 
could appeal that order.(R.AP.55-56, T.T .61- 62)  
I understood that the purpose of the 
complaint was that I was not getting a 
fair dea1,just to complain. I thought it 
was just a complaint of the way this case 
was being handled. I just thought it was 
to complain, about something,you know, 
about the way it was being handled. I 
didn't understand it to be a law suit. Mr. 
McKenzie never went over the document with 
me before I signed it."(R.AP.58-59 T.T. 65-66) 

On March 14, 1989 there was filed with the court 

the deposition taken of respondent's client Meriam Bishop, n/k/a 
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Shrock(R.AP. 61). Her deposition being taken February 24, 

1989,  along with exhibits introduced at said deposition. She 

was asked first in said deposition whether Exhibit 1 of said 

deposition, a motion to make her vacate the home,was true or 

not,that wife had frustrated all attempts by the attorney on 

the other said to sell the home.(R.AP.62-63) which she 

generally denied. She was also asked to comment on the 

opposing attorney's letter of September 27, 1985 in which the 

opposing attorney stated several things that wife had not 

cooperated with in an effort to sell said home, to which she 

generally replied that the matters in said letter were not 

true. (R.AP. 54)  This was deposition Exhibit No. 2. 

As to the deposition Exhibit No. 3 ,  identified as the Complaint 

seeking to negative the court's order Consisting of two Counts 

against the various defendants,(R.AP. 64-70) she testified 

as follows in narrative form: 

"I do know the purpose of that 
Complaint was to avoid the order 
that I was required to go to jail 
unless I signed the listing agree- 
ment. I knew that was so at the 
time I signed that Complaint. The 
purpose of that litigation was to 
void the judge's order. I signed 
the Complaint September 27, 1985.  
As to deposition Exhibit No. 4,that 
is my signature on the Affidavit of 
Prejudice. We felt the judge was 
prejudice in that case. I read the 
Affidavit when I was in your office 
on the date of signing. We are 
talking about David Seth Walker. We 
wanted to get rid of him because of 
his prejudice. I knew the purpose of 
the document and I knew it when I 
signed it."(R.AP. -771-7.71 
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To go t o  t h e  l e n g t h s  t o  have r e sponden t ' s  c l i e n t  

t e s t i f y  c o n t r a r i l y  t o  t h e  t r u e  f a c t s ,  some t h r e a t s  somewhere 

must have been made by some of t h e  p r i n c i p a l s  involved,  t o  

get  h e r  t o  s t a te  t h i n g s  t h a t  simply w e r e  n o t  t r u e .  The re ' s  

no doubt from t h e  B a r ' s  Complaint, t h e  A f f i d a v i t  of M e r i a m  

Shrock f / k / a  Bishop and h e r  tes t imony on t r i a l  t h a t  he r  tes t i-  

mony a t  t h e  d e p o s i t i o n  w a s  e n t i r e l y  d i f f e r e n t  and i n  f a c t  

opposite t o  what h e r  tes t imony and t h e  A f f i d a v i t  provided.  

F u r t h e r ,  a t  t h e  t r i a l ,  t h e  B a r  a l so  in t roduced  as  

E x h i b i t  N o .  1 0  a document e n t i t l e d  P e t i t i o n  f o r  Modi f ica t ion  

which w a s  s igned September 1 0 ,  1984, or approximately one yea r  

p r i o r  t o  h e r  Supplemental P e t i t i o n  f o r  Modi f ica t ion  i n  o r d e r  

t o  s ecu re  permanent alimony. (R.A€,78-80,48-51) The purpose of t h i s  

document w a s  an  a t t empt  made by r e sponden t ' s  c l i e n t  t o  o b t a i n  

t h e  mar i t a l  home as  lump-sum alimony. The reason t h a t  t h e  B a r  

0 

in t roduced  t h i s  document w a s  t o  confuse  t h e  c o u r t  i n t o  t h i n k i n g  

t h a t  wi fe  on ly  sought  t o  recover t h e  home as"permaneng'a1imony 

r a t h e r  than  t h e  P e t i t i o n  f i l e d  a yea r  l a t e r  i n  which she sought 

t o  recover permanent, p e r i o d i c  alimony. A l s o  done f o r  t h e  

purpose of showing t h a t  wi fe  r e a l l y  d i d n ' t  know anyth ing  about  

t h e  e v e n t s  when occur red  subsequent  i n  t h e  p a r t i t i o n  a c t i o n ,  

and t h a t  she  w a s  t o t a l l y  unaware what w a s  t a k i n g  p l a c e  regard-  

i n g  t h e  o r d e r  of August 2 6 ,  1985 which fol lowing t h e  hea r ing  

of August 9 ,  1985. B a r  counse l  BONNIE MAHON in t roduced  t h e  

mod i f i ca t ion  a c t i o n  commenced i n  1984 i n  which r e sponden t ' s  e 
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c l i e n t  a t tempted t o  o b t a i n  t h e  mar i t a l  home as  lump-sum 

alimony, and which w a s  subsequent ly  denied,  t o  show t h a t  

r e sponden t ' s  c l i e n t  had "no knowledge of t h e  e v e n t s  which 

occur red  a f t e r  t h e  August 2 6 ,  1985 hear ing ."  Th i s  w a s  

B a r ' s  E x h i b i t  N o .  1 0 .  I t  w a s  an  a t t empt  by B a r  counsel  t o  

e n t i r e l y  s h i f t  t h e  r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  f o r  t h e  Complaint as  

f i l e d  September 27,  1985 on t o  respondent  (which sought t o  

nega te  t h e  o r d e r  of August 2 6 ,  1985 and t h e  s ign ing  of t h e  

subsequent l i s t i n g  agreement, a s  being under d u r e s s ) .  I t  

appeared t o  respondent  t h a t  t h e  B a r ' s  Complaint, t h e  

A f f i d a v i t  of M e r i a m  Bishop n /k / a  Shrock, and he r  test imony, 

which w a s  t e s t i f i e d  e n t i r e l y  t o  t h e  c o n t r a r y  i n  t h e  d e p o s i t i o n  

of h e r  h e l d  February 2 4 ,  1989, t h a t  she  committed p e r j u r y  

thereby .  

N o t  only  d i d  B a r  counsel  BONNIE MAHON, through t h e  

tes t imony of t h e  r e sponden t ' s  c l i e n t  and t h e  i n t r o d u c t i o n  of 

B a r  E x h i b i t  N o .  1 0 ,  seek t o  mis lead t h e  Referee ,  b u t  add i t i on-  

a l l y  i n  h e r  c l o s i n g  argument she i s  quoted as follows: 

'I-- -- and because he d i d n ' t  want 
t h e  house s o l d ,  because he wanted 
t o  - - he  wanted t h e  house as  
permanent alimony f o r  h i s  c l i e n t .  
(R.AP. 81,T.T.213) (Emphasis supp l i ed )  

This  w a s  t o t a l l y  f a l s e ,  because t h a t  p e t i t i o n  w a s  

a yea r  ear l ier  than  t h e  p e t i t i o n  of 1985, i n  which r e sponden t ' s  

c l i e n t  sought  permanent p e r i o d i c  alimony, having no r e l a t i o n  t o  

t h e  house i t s e l f .  B a r  counse l  knew t h i s  p r e t t y  obviously  a t  



t h e  t i m e  she  in t roduced  t h e  p e t i t i o n  which a t tempted t o  g e t  

t h e  house a s  lump-sum alimony b u t  d e f i n i t e l y  knew it during 

r e sponden t ' s  tes t imony on Page 1 0 4  of t h e  t r a n s c r i p t  when 

B a r  counse l  B O N N I E  MAHON w a s  ques t ion ing  respondent  i n  which 

t h e  ques t ion  and answer i n  n a r r a t i v e  form i s  as  fol lows:  

" Y e s ,  t h i s  document i s  s igned by 
m e  and i s  a document prepared by 
m e  of cou r se ,  b u t  t h a t  i s  only f o r  
lump-sum alimony on t h e  house t h a t  
i s  a l l  it has  t o  do wi th ,  it has  
no th ing  a t  a l l  t o  do wi th  what I 
w a s  su ing  f o r  h e r  t o  g e t ,  you know, 
permanent alimony on." (R.AP.82) 

The q u e s t i o n e r  a l so  knew t h i s  w a s  so because h e r  answer on 

page 1 0 4  aga in  is: 

"Ok. F ine ,  M r .  McKenzie, L e t ' s  g e t  
on wi th  my ques t ion ing .  

A. A l l  r i g h t .  I d o n ' t  know where you 
g o t  t h a t  from. I t  d o e s n ' t  have any- 
t h i n g  t o  do wi th  t h i s . "  

One f u r t h e r  t h i n g  should be expla ined ,  t h e  p a r t i -  

t i o n  a c t i o n  w a s  brought  i n  a c o u r t  s e p a r a t e  from t h e  d ivo rce  

a c t i o n  i t s e l f ,  because t h e  c o u r t  i n  i t s  f i n a l  d ivo rce  judgment 

d i d  n o t  r e s e r v e  j u r i s d i c t i o n  t h e r e i n  t o  do t h e  p a r t i t i o n  a c t i o n ,  

which means t h a t  t h e  s u i t  f o r  permanent p e r i o d i c  alimony w a s  

going on i n  a s e p a r a t e  c o u r t  a t  t h e  t i m e  t h e  p a r t i t i o n  a c t i o n  

w a s  ongoing. 

F u r t h e r ,  o ther  matters  w e r e  commited by B a r  counse l  

BONNIE MAHON, c o n t r a r y  t o  t h e  r u l e s  on e t h i c s ,  which w e r e  

o b j e c t e d  t o  du r ing  t r i a l  by t h e  respondent ,  involved p r i o r  

d i s c i p l i n a r y  a c t i o n  by t h e  B a r  involv ing  r e sponden t ' s  p r i o r  
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reprimands.  This  w a s  done du r ing  cross examination of 

respondent  dur ing  t h e  t r i a l  by B a r  counsel  BONNIE NAHON, 

commencing on Page 1 1 7  of t h e  T r a n s c r i p t  through page 1 2 0 .  

( R  . AP . 83-86) 

Q 9  

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

S t a r t i n g  on l i n e  23 t h e r e o f :  

"Okay. M r .  McKenzie, have you had 
any p r i o r  d i s c i p l i n a r y  a c t i o n ?  

W e l l  - - 

With The F l o r i d a  Bar? 

Once back i n  81  or 82. 

D o  have one p r i o r  d i s c i p l i n a r y  
r eco rd?  

There may have been another .  

You have had t w o  p r i o r  d i s c i p l i n a r y  
a c t i o n s ?  

Uh-uh. 

What k ind  - - 

Is t h a t  germane a t  t h i s  t ime? 

I t h i n k  it is.  

I d o n ' t  t h i n k  i t ' s  germane. 

THE COURT: o b j e c t i o n  i s  ove r ru l ed .  

By M s .  Mahon: 
M r .  McKenzie, do you know what you 
r ece ived  f o r  d i s c i p l i n e  i n  both  
of t hose  ca ses?  

A. Reprimand. 

Q.  Pub l i c  reprimand? 

A. D o  you know f o r  what conduct? 

Q.  I d o n ' t  reca l l .  
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Q .  

A. 

Q .  

A. 

Q .  

A. 

Q. 

A. 

A l l  r i g h t .  W e l l ,  I have cop ie s  of 
t h e  cases t o  h e l p  you recal l .  Here 
are t w o  of them.(Handing documents t o  
wi tnes s  ) 

(Pausing t o  review document.) 
This  one happens t o  one where t h e  
judge here decided no g u i l t  and you 
people  took it t o  The Supreme Court .  

And w h a t  d i d  The Supreme Court  r u l e ?  

W e l l ,  t h ey  r u l e d  t h a t  d e s p i t e  t h e  
f i n d i n g s  of f a c t s  by t h e  Referee  
h e r e  - - 

What w a s  t h e  n a t u r e  of t h e  a c t ?  

A l l  r i g h t  you want m e  t o  go i n t o  t h i s  
t h i n g ?  Whatever it w a s ?  

I j u s t  want t o  know what you w e r e  
found g u i l t y  o f ,  M r .  McKenzie. 

W e l l ,  a c t u a l l y  would t h e  c o u r t  l i k e  
m e  t o  p u t  t h e s e  i n t o  evidence? 

THE COURT, Y e s ,  I have t o  cons ide r  r e sponden t ' s  
p r i o r  d i s c i p l i n a r y  record  i n  any even t .  

M s .  Mahon: I would j u s t  l i k e  t o  - - 
M r .  McKenzie: W e l l ,  your honor,  t h a t  i s  i n  

case t h i s  c o u r t  does  f i n d  g u i l t  or  f i n d s  
I a m  g u i l t y  of s o m e  o f f e n s e .  

THE COURT: That  i s  a matter f o r  t h e  c o u r t  t o  
cons ide r  i n  reach ing  a conc lus ion .  

M s .  Mahon: Your Honor, I would j u s t  say I 
have occas ions  when t h i s  hea r ing  i s  
concluded t h a t  it i s  t h e  l a s t  I have 
have heard  u n t i l  I r e c e i v e  a r e p o r t .  
So I f e e l  o b l i g a t e d  t o  inform t h e  c o u r t  
of t h i s  p r i o r  r eco rd .  

THE COURT: A l l  r i g h t .  

M s .  Mahon: J u s t  f o r  t h e  r eco rd  - - 
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THE COURT: J u s t  f o r  t h e  r eco rd  so t h a t  
t h e  r eco rd  w i l l  be complete,  M r .  
Reporter ,  it should r e f l e c t  t h a t  
counse l  f o r  t h e  B a r  ha s  handed t o  
t h e  c o u r t  cases of THE FLORIDA BAR 
v M c K E N Z I E ,  r e p o r t e d  a t  432 So 2d 
566 and ano the r  case of FLORIDA BAR 
v M c K E N Z I E .  4 4 2  So 2d 934. 

By M s .  Mahon: 

Q. I have j u s t  one o t h e r  ques t ion ,  sir. 
M r .  McKenzie w e r e  you e v e r  d i s c i p l i n e d  
by t h e  Wisconsin B a r ?  

A.  N o .  

A l l  of t h i s  w a s  p u t  i n  t h e  r eco rd  du r ing  t h e  

t r i a l ,  p rope r ly  o b j e c t e d  t o ,  and n o t  a f t e r  a f i n d i n g  of g u i l t  

as r e q u i r e d  by t h e  E t h i c s  Rules.  

Under "Procedures b e f o r e  a Referee" ,  3-75 ( k )  ( 4 )  

0 d e a l i n g  wi th  t h e  r e f e r e e ' s  r e p o r t  i s  found t h e  fo l lowing  

language : 

"A s t a t emen t  of any p a s t  d i s c i p l i n a r y  
measures as  t o  t h e  respondent  which 
are on r eco rd  wi th  t h e  execu t ive  
d i r e c t o r  of The F l o r i d a  B a r  or  which 
o the rwi se  become known t o  t h e  r e f e r e e  
through evidence p rope r ly  admi t ted  by 
t h e  r e f e r e e  du r ing  t h e  course  of t h e  
proceedings  ( a f t e r  a f i n d i n q  of q u i l t  
a l l  evidence of p r i o r  d i s c i p l i n a r y  
measures may be o f f e r e d  by b a r  counse l  
s u b j e c t  t o  a p p r o p r i a t e  o b j e c t i o n  or 
exp lana t ion  by respondent)  . 
(Emphasis supp l i ed )  

The Referee  i n  h i s  r e p o r t  makes s e v e r a l  s t a t emen t s  

t o t a l l y  unwarranted by t h e  evidence.  H e  states t h a t  t h e  

respondent  t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  he  f i l e d  a l a w s u i t  a g a i n s t  Judge 
h 

Walker and o t h e r s  i n  o r d e r  t o  i n t i m i d a t e  M r .  Colclough i n t o  

- 2 1  - 



n o t  moving forward wi th  a p a r t i t i o n  a c t i o n  and caused 

Judge Walker t o  have t o  r ecuse  himself  from t h e  p a r t i t i o n  

a c t i o n .  That  s t a t emen t  i s  t o t a l l y  unwarranted by t h e  
*t 

evidence a t  t h e  t r i a l .  H e  f u r t h e r  s tates t h a t  it appeared 

t h a t  t h e  l a w s u i t  a g a i n s t  Judge Walker and t h e  o t h e r s  w a s  

done as  a matter of spite and a s  a vende t t a?  
&t 

This  i s  

t o t a l l y  unwarranted by t h e  evidence i n  t h e  case. I t  j u s t  

p l a i n  d o e s n ' t  e x i s t  t h e r e i n .  And i n s o f a r  as  n o t  appea l ing  

t h e  o r d e r  a s  e n t e r e d ,  August 26 ,  1985, t h e  only  tes t imony i n  

t h e  case concerning t h a t  m a t t e r  w a s  t o  i n d i c a t e  t h a t  h i s  

c l i e n t  d i d  n o t  a u t h o r i z e  him t o  t a k e  such an appea l  and by 

t h e  t i m e  t h a t  an appea l  cou ld  be taken ,  t h e  t i m e  t o  do so had 

exp i r ed .  See t h e  B a r  E x h i b i t  N o .  6 t h e  Complaint i t s e l f  which 

w a s  da t ed  September 27 ,  1985.(R.AP. 64- 69)  N o r  w a s  it i n  

any of t h e  tes t imony o r  evidence which occur red  a t  t h e  A p r i l  6 ,  

1989 t r i a l  of t h i s  m a t t e r ,  which would i n d i c a t e  t h a t  t h i s  

Complaint a s  f i l e d  September 27 ,  1985, had i n  any way a s  i t s  

purpose t o  have Judge Walker r ecuse  himself  from t h e  p a r t i t i o n  

a c t i o n .  A s  a m a t t e r  of f a c t ,  t h e  on ly  tes t imony i n  t h a t  r ega rd  

w a s  when asked by B a r  counse l  i f  t h a t  w a s  r e sponden t ' s  purpose 

respondent  r e p l i e d ,  " NO,  t h a t  w a s  n o t  one of t h e  purposes ,  it 

d i d  n o t  have t h a t  purpose a t  a l l . " ( R . A P .  87-88, T.T.  107-108) 

I t  s e e m s  t h a t  t h e  Referee  r e s t e d  h i s  op in ion  on 

t h e  sole grounds t h a t  because Judge Walker had s u b j e c t  m a t t e r  

j u r i s d i c t i o n ,  and pe r sona l  j u r i s d i c t i o n ,  through F.S. Chapter 6 4  
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t h a t  Judge Walker had j u r i s d i c t i o n  t o  en t e r -  o rde r  0 
t h a t  he wanted,(R.AP.89,~.~.113) though perhaps  erroneous.  

The f a c t  t h a t  he  w a s  taken i n  by t h e  e r roneous  

P e t i t i o n  f o r  Modi f ica t ion  which w a s  da t ed  a yea r  p r i o r  t o  

h e r  Supplemental P e t i t i o n  f o r  p e r i o d i c  permanent alimony, 

t h e  a l l e g e d  p e r j u r y  by r e sponden t ' s  c l i e n t  a t  t h e  t r i a l ,  

and t h e  f a l s e  A f f i d a v i t ,  appa ren t ly  caused t h e  Referee  t o  

conclude t h a t  r e sponden t ' s  c l i e n t  had no p a r t  i n  t h e  

Complaint as f i l e d  September 2 7 ,  1985 and t h a t  she w a s  t o t a l l y  

unaware of what w a s  happening a t  t h a t  t i m e .  A l s o ,  he al lowed 

proof of p r i o r  reprimands i n t o  t h e  r eco rd  p r i o r  t o  a f i n d i n g  

of g u i l t  i n  de roga t ion  of proper  procedures  as  conta ined  i n  t h e  

e t h i c s  manual, s i m i l a r  t o  a l lowing  proof of p rev ious  c o n v i c t i o n s  

of a defendant  i n  a c r i m i n a l  t r i a l  which, of cou r se ,  i s  h igh ly  

p r e j u d i c i a l  and has  been cause  f o r  r e v e r s a l i n  c r i m i n a l  cases. 
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AS TO COSTS 

This  matter w a s  t r i e d  A p r i l  6 ,  1989, and on t h a t  

d a t e ,  I n t r e g a t i o n  Rule 1 1 . 0 6 ( 9 ) ( 5 )  allows costs a g a i n s t  t h e  

respondent  as  fol lows:  

"A s t a t emen t  of cost  of t h e  procedings  
and recommendations as  t o  t h e  manner 
i n  which costs  should be  taxed .  The 
costs s h a l l  i nc lude  c o u r t  r e p o r t e r s '  
f e e s ,  copy c o s t s ,  w i tnes s  f e e s  and 
t r a v e l i n g  expenses and reasonable  
t r a v e l i n g  out- of- pocket  expenses of 
t h e  r e f e r e e  and b a r  counse l ,  i f  any. 
* * *I1 (Emphasis suppl ied . )  

I n  t h e  new D i s c i p l i n a r y  Rules,  t h e  costs  are 

e x a c t l y  t h e  s a m e .  Please see: 3-7.5 (k) ( 5 ) .  B a r  counse l  f i l e d  

t h r e e  s t a t emen t s  of c o s t s .  (R.AP.  90-103) I t  w a s  on t h e  b a s i s  

of t h e  Second Amended Sta tement  of C o s t s ,  t h a t  t h e  Referee  

found t h o s e  costs which w e r e  s t a t e d  t h e r e i n  a t  $2,069.50 i n  

h i s  r e p o r t  i n  which he l i s t ed  t h e  c o s t s  a t  $2,052.80.(R.AP14) 

I n  t h e  Pre l iminary  Sta tement  of C o s t s ,  d a t ed  May 1, 

1989, on t h e  l a s t  page the reo f  i s  an i t e m  c a l l e d  "S ta f f  

I n v e s t i g a t o r  Expenses" l i s t i n g  hours  and mileage f o r  one 

E r n e s t  J. K i r s t e i n ,  Jr. coming up t o  a t o t a l  of $540.84. 

(R.AP. 93) I t  w a s  a l s o  l i s t e d  t h a t  t h e  a d m i n i s t r a t i v e  

c o s t s  w e r e  $500.00 f o r  both  t h e  g r i evance  hea r ing  and t h e  

R e f e r e e ' s  hea r ing ,  which accord ing  t o  t h e  proper  costs should 

have been $300.00 (found on Page 1 of s a i d  Pre l iminary  S t a t emen t ) .  

I n  The Second Amended Sta tement  of Cos ts ,  da t ed  June 2 ,  1989, 

t h i s  expense now i s  shown t o  be a t o t a l  of $300.00,as t h i s  case 
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w a s  t r ied  A p r i l  6 ,  1 9 8 9 .  The i t e m  now on t h e  l a s t  page 

i s  i d e n t i f i e d  as expenses of E r n e s t  J. K i r s t e i n ,  Jr. f o r  

p roces s ing  and s e r v i c e  of subpoenas, and expenses of 

Joseph McFadden f o r  process ing  and service of subpoenas, 

a t o t a l  of $215.90. This  i s  on t h e  t h i r d  page of s a i d  

Second Amended Sta tement  of Costs.(R.AP. 1 0 3 )  

This  i s  a t o t a l l y  unwarranted cos t  f o r  t h i s  m a t t e r  which 

w a s  t r i e d  A p r i l  6 ,  1989. There i s  no th ing  i n  e i t h e r  t h e  

I n t e g r a t i o n  Rules or  t h e  new Rules of Procedure which would 

a u t h o r i z e  t h i s  cost  of t h e  B a r .  They are s o l e l y  l i m i t e d  t o  

t h e  costs as expressed t h e r e i n .  The only cost  i n c l u d e s  

" c o u r t  reporters f e e s ,  copy costs ,  w i tnes s  f e e s  and t r a v e l i n g  

expenses,  r ea sonab le  t r a v e l i n g  and out- of- pocket  expenses of 

t h e  r e f e r e e  and bar counse l ,  i f  any." The c o u r t  w i l l  n o t e ,  

t h a t  nowhere i n  any of t h e s e  S t a t e m e n t s  of Costs  w e r e  t h e r e  

any wi tnes s  fees o r  w i tnes s  t r a v e l  expenses.  

t h e  c o u r t  r e p o r t e r  expenses of Be t ty  M.  Lu r i a  as found on 

page t h r e e  of t h e  r e p o r t  and t h e  l a s t  i t e m  mentioned i n  s a i d  

Second Amended Sta tement  of C o s t s  amounted t o  s o m e  $ 2 6 2 . 0 7  

f o r  t h e  t r a n s c r i p t .  Respondent d o e s n ' t  know why t h i s  amount 

of $ 2 6 2 . 0 7  w a s  p a i d  by b a r  counse1 , i f  i n  f a c t  b a r  counsel  d i d  

pay t h i s  sum, b u t  no reason  e x i s t s  under t h e  l a w  f o r  t h i s  

t r a n s c r i p t  t o  amount t o  $ 2 6 2 . 0 7 .  Included herewith  of t h a t  

proceeding which w a s  May 1, 1989 are t h e  f i r s t  and l a s t  pages 

of s a i d  t r a n s c r i p t  showing t h a t  t h e  l e n g t h  of s a i d  t r a n s c r i p t  

Fu r the r  , 
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w a s  from Page 1 through 37. (R.AP.104-105) According 

t o  F.S. 29.03, o f f i c i a l  c o u r t  r e p o r t e r s  are al lowed t h e  

sum of " f i f t y  c e n t s ,  p e r  page f o r  t h e  o r i g i n a l  and t h e  

amount of twenty- five  c e n t s  p e r  page f o r  each carbon copy 

t h e r e o f ,  t h a t  each such t r a n s c r i p t  page s h a l l  c o n s i s t  of 

n o t  less than  25 l i n e s  of double- spaced p i c a  typ ing ."  

I f  w e  mu l t i p ly  seventy- f ive  c e n t s  t i m e s  37 pages ,  such 

t r a n s c r i p t  should have cost  a t  most t h e  sum of $27.75. 

Following t h e  Re fe ree ' s  Report  and t h e  costs involved 

t h e r e i n ,  Motion f o r  Rehearing w a s  made by respondent  i n  

which several matters w e r e  sought  t o  be r eve r sed  and a t  

t h e  leas t  the reo f  t h a t  t h e r e  be a new t r i a l  based upon 

p e r j u r y  and several matters. 

reviewed pu r suan t  t o  t h e  a p p l i c a b l e  r u l e s  r e l a t i n g  t h e r e t o .  

(R.AP.  106-123) The Referee  denied same, and a c t i n g  

on B a r  Counse l ' s  recommendation, suspended respondent  f o r  

9 1  days. 

That  t h e  costs be 

0 
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SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

Bar counsel's actions so tainted the trial 

which occured April 6 ,  1 9 8 9 ,  that she herself should be 

subject to discipline and a mistrial declared. 

She knowingly used perjured testimony from 

her witness MERIAM BISHOP, who at a deposition, pro- 

vided testimony which contradicted her testimony at the 

trial. Knowingly, because she attended said deposition 

and heard the witness testify to the material matters. 

All at the February 24, 1989  deposition. 

Secondly, she used a 1984  Petition of 

respondent's of his client on the BISHOP case, (COUNT I1 

of the Bar's Complaint) which was an attempt to have the 

court grant her the marital home as lump-sum alimony 

when she knew by the court record in the divorce suit 

itself and from testimony at this trial differently,to pretend it 

was the only thing respondent's client was interested in, 

and that respondent's client either had no knowledge or 

interest in the 1 9 8 5  Petition which sought periodic, per- 

manent alimony from her husband, making it appear that 

respondent was doing things in the divorce case all by 

himself. Tending to convince the referee that the Complaint 

filed September 27, 1 9 8 5  against various parties, including 

the listing broker, a judge, etc. was totally respondent's 

with no participation by his client, even though said 
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Complaint shows on its face that respondent's client 

had signed same, had read its contents and acknowledged 

that it was true. 

Thirdly, Bar's counsel brought up during the 

trial, and prior to a finding of guilt, respondent's two 

prior reprimands in derogation of the Bar's own Rules of 

Discipline, 3-7.5(k) ( 4 ) ,  and the criminal law (when the 

bringing up of past criminal offenses is only for showing 

the bad character of a defendant or his propensity to 

commit a crime). She further had the temerity to ask 

respondent at this trial if he had prior reprimands in 

Wisconsin where he previously practiced. 

Regarding the referee's finding that respondent 

had in the LANHAM divorce case, COUNT I of the Bar's 

Complaint, violated DR 1-102(5) and DR 1-102(6) by Bar's 

Exhibits 19, 21, 22 and 25 there is no evidence to sustain 

those charges at all. CANON 7, DR 7-llO(B)(2) permits 

letters to the trial judge on the merits if the otherside 

is sent a copy. There was no showing those letters had 

any effect on the "administration of justice" and do not in 

any way "reflect on respondent's fitness to practice law". 

As to violation of DR 7-106(C)(l) which only concerns TRIAL 

CONDUCT to begin with, but in no way do those letters have 

anything to do with "alluding to some matter respondent 

knew was not relevant". 
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On the BISHOP divorce, COUNT I1 of the 

Complaint against respondent, there was no basis for 

the referee to conclude respondent, by including a judge 

(among several others) in a Complaint having as its 

purpose to void, in a collateral attack on the court's 

order of August 26, 1985 ,  finding respondent's client 

guilty of contempt, and unless she signed a listing agree- 

ment by August 17, 1 9 8 5  she was to go to jail: started a 

"suit without merit", in which he concluded that so long 

as a "judge has subject matter and personal jurisdiction, 

he can make any order he wants". This is a patently 

false conclusion as concerns judicial immunity. And, even 

the Canons of ethic's support respondent's action in this 

regard if a good faith argument is made. 

0 

As to costs, Bar counsel again by deception, 

as shown in brief elsewhere, managed to include as a cost 

she was not entitled to under all the rules, and a reporter's 

cost in excess of that allowed by FS 29.03. 
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ARGUMENT 

ISSUE I: 

DO THE LETTERS IN COMPOSITE EXHIBIT 2 INDICATE ANY 

VIOLATION OF ETHICS? 

Is the Referee's Report which indicates a 

violation of DR 1-102(5) which states that a lawyer 

"shall not engage in conduct that is prejudicial to the 

administration of justice"; he shall not according to 

DR 1-102(6) "engage in any other conduct that adversely 

reflects on his fitness to practice law; and, DR 7-106(C) 

(1) "state or allude to any matter that he has no reason- 

able basis to believe is relevant to the case or that 

will not be supported by admissible evidence.Itx proven at all? 

First of all, checking DR 7-llO(B) (2) (which 

allows lawyers to communicate with a judge), it says: 

"In an adversary proceeding, a lawyer 
shall not communicate, * * *, as to 
the merits of the cause with a judge or 
an official before whom the proceeding 
is pending, except: 

( 2 )  In writing if he promptly 
delivers a copy of the writings 
to opposing counsel or to the 
adverse party if he is not rep- 
resented by a lawyer". 
(Emphasis supplied) 

It is clear that a lawyer may communicate with 

the judge in writing as to the merits, provided he promptly 

notifies the other party or the other lawyer with a copy of 
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said writing. In the exhibits found by the Referee 

to have violated the above Canons of Ethics, there is 

no question 

clearly, by copy, went to the other side. That was 

established when the claim of these communications being 

sent "ex parte", were properly stricken from the Complaint. 

Now, were these writings "prejudicial to the administration 

of justice" and, did these writings "adversely reflect on 

respondent's fitness to practice law"? Since this matter 

was entirely brought by The Florida Bar on its own, it is 

difficult to see where there was any prejudicial effect on 

the administration of justice. There was no testimony from 

that these writings as found in the exhibits 

the trial judge or his secretary, there was no complaint 

filed by the trial judge or his secretary, nor was there 
e 

any other testimony by anyone else indicating that these 

identified exhibits had any prejudicial effect whatseover 

on the administration of justice, or any effect on the 

trial of this case. As far as these exhibits are concerned, 

were they in any conduct which "reflected on the respon- 

dent's fitness to practice law"? 

Let us examine these exhibits: as to Bar's 

Exhibit 19, respondent's letter of April 11, 1986, in which 

respondent wrote to the trial judge concerning the case at 

hand in which opposing attorney RICHARD DAVIS had gotten a 

court date for a hearing for temporary alimony for his client 

which only allowed one week's time within which to allow 
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r e sponden t ' s  c l i e n t  t o  p repa re  fo r  same; t h e  only  test imony 

i n  t h e  r eco rd  i s  t h a t  when respondent  a t tempted t o  g e t  a 

cont inuance of t h i s  matter f o r  v a r i o u s  reasons ,  he  w a s  t o l d  

by t h e  j u d g e ' s  s e c r e t a r y  t o  w r i t e  a l e t te r  t o  t h e  judge 

r a t h e r  than  f i l i n g  f o r  a cont inuance of t h i s  m a t t e r  because 

t h e  t r i a l  judge had too many o t h e r  t h i n g s  on h i s  docket  t o  

hea r  a motion fo r  cont inuance.  She f u r t h e r  t o l d  respondent  

t h a t  he  should p u t  i n  a l l  matters  which he in tended  t o  

argue f o r  a cont inuance i n  s a i d  l e t te r .  There w a s  no o t h e r  

tes t imony concerning t h i s  matter.  I t  i s  n o t  t h a t  B a r  counsel  

d i d  n o t  know t h e  reasons  f o r  t h i s  l e t te r ,  and t h e r e f o r e  w a s  

n o t  a b l e  t o  have t h e  t r i a l  judge or  h i s  s e c r e t a r y  appear  t o  

p rov ide  tes t imony,  because it w a s  made clear a t  t h e  gr ievance  

committee and a l s o  i n  r e sponden t ' s  answer t o  t h i s  mat ter ,  

t h a t  t h a t  w a s  t o  be  r e sponden t ' s  tes t imony.  (R.AP.  2 6 )  

e 

0 

Examining f u r t h e r ,  B a r  E x h i b i t  2 1 ,  r e sponden t ' s  

l e t te r  of A p r i l  18,  1986, p l e a s e  no te  t h a t  it i s  a l e t t e r  

w r i t t e n  by respondent  t o  The F l o r i d a  B a r  i n q u i r i n g  about  a 

le t te r  t h a t  opposing counse l  RICHARD DAVIS had pu rpo r t ed ly  

s e n t  t o  The F l o r i d a  B a r  concerning a gr ievance  t h a t  he had 

a g a i n s t  respondent .  P l ea se  r e f e r  t o  B a r  E x h i b i t  2 0 ,  t h e  

l e t t e r  by RICHARD DAVIS t o  The F l o r i d a  Bar c la iming  t h a t  

respondent  i s  " e t h i c a l l y  forb idden  from make ex p a r t e  

communications t o  t h e  c o u r t . "  Apparently r e f e r r i n g  t o  

r e sponden t ' s  l e t t e r  t o  t h e  t r i a l  judge on A p r i l  11, 1986. 

This  l e t te r  w a s  by carbon copy s e n t  t o  t h e  t r i a l  judge The 
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Honorable GERARD J. O ' B R I E N .  N o t  only  w a s  E x h i b i t  20  

fa lse ,  i n  t h a t  it w a s  n o t  "ex p a r t e "  b u t  appa ren t ly ,  

according t o  t h e  l e t te r  r ece ived  from The F l o r i d a  B a r ,  

from Steven Rushing, it w a s  never  even r ece ived  by The 

F l o r i d a  B a r .  Respondent complained t o  The F l o r i d a  B a r  

i n  h i s  l e t te r  of A p r i l  18 ,  1986, t h a t  any such communi- 

c a t i o n ,  w a s  n o t  "ex p a r t e "  and asked The F l o r i d a  B a r  t o  

look i n t o  M r .  D a v i s ' s  conduct ,  which respondent  f e l t  t h a t  

by sending a le t te r  of t h i s  n a t u r e  t o  The Florida B a r  i n  

which he complained t h a t  t h e  le t ters  w e r e  "ex p a r t e "  

v i o l a t e d  DR 1 - 1 0 2 ( A ) ( 4 )  which s tates t h a t  a lawyer s h a l l  

n o t  "engage i n  conduct  involv ing  d i shones ty ,  f r a u d ,  d e c e i t ,  

or  mi s rep re sen ta t ion" .  I t  even involved DR 1- 102 ( A )  ( 6 )  , i n  

t h a t  a lawyer s h a l l  n o t  "engage i n  any o t h e r  conduct  which 

adve r se ly  r e f l e c t s  on h i s  f i t n e s s  t o  p r a c t i c e  l a w " ,  because,  

M r .  Davis had obviously  s e n t  t h i s  l e t te r  i n  an e f f o r t  t o  

p r e j u d i c e  t h e  t r i a l  judge a g a i n s t  respondent .  N o t  on ly  d i d  

M r .  Davis n o t  send t h i s  l e t te r  t o  The F l o r i d a  B a r ,  (because 

of b a r  counse l  Steven Rushing's  le t ter  of A p r i l  2 4 ,  1986, t o  

r e sponden t ) ,  i n  denying t h a t  they  had r ece ived  a le t ter  from 

M r .  Davis, it appears  M r .  Davis engaged i n  d e c e i t f u l  conduct  

thereby ,  he  n o t  wanting The F l o r i d a  B a r  t o  become involved 

b u t  on ly  t o  a t t empt  t o  p r e j u d i c e  t h e  t r i a l  judge a g a i n s t  

respondent  by h i s  l e t t e r  of A p r i l  1 4 ,  1986. This  w a s  t h e  

purpose of r e sponden t ' s  l e t t e r  of A p r i l  25, 1986 t o  t h e  t r i a l  

judge,  which i s  B a r ' s  E x h i b i t  2 2 ,  which respondent  w r o t e  f o r  
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0 t h e  purpose of informing t h e  t r i a l  judge t h a t  t h i s  never  

r e a l l y  d i d  occur  and t h a t  opposing a t t o r n e y  on ly  s t a t e d  

t h i s  f o r  t h e  purpose of p r e j u d i c i n g  t h e  t r i a l  c o u r t  

a g a i n s t  respondent .  B a r ' s  E x h i b i t  2 5 ,  a l e t te r  w r i t t e n  

June 1 2 ,  1986 by respondent  t o  t h e  t r i a l  judge on t h i s  

case, refers t o  Richard Davis 's l e t te r  t o  t h e  t r i a l  judge 

of June 9 ,  1986, i n  which M r .  Davis made t h e  m o s t  odious  

remarks about  respondent  i n  which he s t a t e d  t h a t  res- 

pondent had by "every a r t i f i c e ,  connivance,  p r e t e x t ,  sham 

and excuse imaginable h a s  avoided every a t t empt  f o r  almost 

2 y e a r s  t o  b r i n g  t h i s  m a t t e r  t o  a f i n a l  H e  

f u r t h e r  s ays  h e ' s  " s i c k  of t h e s e  l i e s ,  evas ions ,  p r e t e n t i o n s ,  

unfounded and ma l i c ious  charges  of u n e t h i c a l  behavior  and 

p e r s i s t e n t  mi s rep re sen ta t ions  of t h i s  r eco rd  t o  t h e  c o u r t  by 

opposing counse l" .  And, by t h i s  t i r a d e  of M r .  Davis a g a i n s t  

respondent ,  r e sponden t ' s  r e p l y  i n  h i s  June 1 2  l e t te r ,  

po in t ed  t h e s e  appa ren t  v i o l a t i o n s  o u t  t o  n o t  on ly  t h e  t r i a l  

c o u r t ,  b u t  t o  Richard Davis and t o  The Florida B a r .  C i t i n g  

s p e c i f i c  v i o l a t i o n s  by M r .  Davis t h a t  respondent  h a d f e l t  M r .  

Davis v i o l a t e d  t h e  Canons of E t h i c s ,  p a r t i c u l a r l y  EC 7-36 

which says:  'I* * *and should avoid any o t h e r  conduct  ca lcu-  

l a t e d  t o  g a i n  s p e c i a l  cons ide ra t ion . " ;  EC 7-37 ' I* * * A 

lawyer should n o t  make u n f a i r  or  deroga tory  pe r sona l  refer- 

ence t o  opposing counse l .  Haranguing and o f f e n s i v e  tac t ics  

by lawyers i n t e r f e r e  wi th  t h e  o r d e r l y  a d m i n i s t r a t i o n  of 

j u s t i c e  and have no proper  p l a c e  i n  our  l e g a l  system." 
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EC 7-38 says  t h a t  I r a  lawyer should be cour teous  t o  

opposing counsel  and should accede t o  reasonable  r e q u e s t s  

r ega rd ing  c o u r t  proceedings ,  s e t t i ngq , con t inuances ,*  * *I1 

Most of which f i t s  under DR 7 - 1 0 6 ( C ) ( 6 )  which states t h a t  

a lawyer s h a l l  n o t  "engage i n  und ign i f i ed  or  d i scou r t eous  

conduct  which i s  degrading t o  a t r i b u n a l " .  

0 

The B a r  never  took any a c t i o n  a g a i n s t  M r .  

Davis, as  m a t t e r  of  f a c t ,  they  used him as  a wi tnes s  du r ing  

t h e  t r i a l  of t h i s  matter ,  nor  d i d  t h e  B a r  eve r  acknowledge 

r e c e i v i n g  t h e  A p r i l  1 4 ,  1986 le t te r  from M r .  Davis up u n t i l  

and dur ing  t h e  t r i a l  of t h i s  m a t t e r .  The simple ques t ion  

i s  why d i d n ' t  t h e  B a r  t a k e  any a c t i o n  a g a i n s t  M r .  Davis? 

The easy  answer t o  t h i s  q u e s t i o n  i s  t h a t  they  have been o u t  

t o  " g e t  respondent"  f o r  y e a r s .  I n  c r i m i n a l  l a w  t h i s  would 

be called " s e l e c t i v e  prosecu t ion" .  So it seems man i f e s t l y  

clear t h a t  n o t  only  w a s  r e sponden t ' s  l e t te r  of A p r i l  1 4 ,  

1986, wi th  t h e  b l e s s i n g  of t h e  t r i a l  c o u r t ,  and so reques ted  

by t h e  t r i a l  c o u r t ,  and t h a t  it w a s  p e r f e c t l y  l awful  w i t h i n  

t h e  a u t h o r i t y  of t h e  Code of P r o f e s s i o n a l  R e s p o n s i b i l i t y  

CANON 7 ,  DR 7- 110,  b u t  t h a t  it evoked responses  from t h e  

o t h e r  s i d e  which seemed t o  show t h a t  t h e  opposing a t t o r n e y  

w a s  never  c a l l e d  i n t o  account  by The F l o r i d a  B a r  f o r  h i s  

deceit,  d i shones ty ,  and u s e  of deroga tory  remarks a l l  t end ing  

t o  show h i s  e f f o r t  t o  o b t a i n  s p e c i a l  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  from t h e  

t r i a l  c o u r t  through h i s  a c t i o n s .  A l l  of t h i s  t e n d s  t o  show 

t h a t  t h e  r e f e r e e  on t h i s  case, w a s  t o t a l l y  p re jud iced  a g a i n s t  

0 
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respondent  from t h e  ve ry  beginning which had i t s  b a s i s  

somewhat i n  t h e  manner i n  which t h e  t r i a l  i t s e l f  w a s  

conducted by him. I t  i s  n o t  t h a t  t h e  r e f e r e e  d i d n ' t  have 

t h e s e  matters i n  f r o n t  of him a t  t h e  t i m e  t h e  Motion f o r  

Rehearing w a s  f i l e d ,  because s a i d  Motion f o r  Rehearing 

d i d  encompass t h e  matters  a s  has  been h e r e t o f o r e  stated.(R.AP.106-133) 

A s  f a r  as  t h e r e  being a v i o l a t i o n  of DR 7-106 

( C )  (1) which i s  shown t o  be t h a t  a lawyer s h a l l  n o t  "s ta te  

o r  a l l u d e  t o  any matter t h a t  he  has  no reasonable  basis  t o  

b e l i e v e  i s  r e l e v a n t  t o  t h e  c a s e  or  t h a t  w i l l  n o t  be 

supported by admiss ib le  evidence" ,  it i s  d i f f i c u l t  t o  see 

where t h e  referee i s  coming from when he  s tates  t h a t  

respondent  v i o l a t e d  t h a t  r u l e .  That  p a r t i c u l a r  r u l e  comes 

under t h e  broad heading of "TRIAL CONDUCT" and i n s o f a r  as  

t h i s  case i s  concerned t h e r e  w a s  no th ing  i n  any of t h e  

e x h i b i t s ,  tes t imony,  or  i n  any o t h e r  way t h a t  would i n d i c a t e  

t h a t  du r ing  t h e  d ivo rce  t r i a l  t h a t  any v i o l a t i o n s  a t  a l l  w e r e  

claimed e i t h e r  by t h e  gr ievance  committee or  through t h e  

B a r ' s  Complant which would c a l l  t h i s  p a r t i c u l a r  r u l e  i n t o  

p lay .  And, I cha l l enge  B a r  counse l  t o  p o i n t  t o  anything i n  

t h e  r eco rd  of t h i s  case t h a t  would i n d i c a t e  anything t o  t h e  

c o n t r a r y .  I t  would seem t h a t  t h e  r e f e r e e  went f a r  a f i e l d  i n  

h i s  e f f o r t  t o  " t a r  and f e a t h e r "  respondent  wi th  non- per t inen t  

v i o l a t i o n s ,  say ing ,  i n  e f f e c t ,  t h a t  respondent  had no r i g h t  

t o  respond t o  opposing c o u n s e l ' s  mal ic ious  charges  i n  seeking 

t o  d imin ish  respondent  i n  t h e  eyes  of t h e  t r i a l  judge by h i s  

0 p r e j u d i c i a l  remarks. 
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ISSUE 11: 

WAS THE TRIAL CONDUCTED I N  SUCH AN UNFAIR AND PREJUDICIAL 

MANNER AS TO AFFORD RESPONDENT NO SEMBLANCE O F  A F A I R  

HEARING? 

I t  i s  n o t  t h a t  t h e s e  matters w e r e  n o t  brought 

up p r i o r  t o  t h i s  t ime,as w i l l  be h e r e a f t e r  expressed ,  a l l  

of t h e s e  below mentioned matters w e r e  i n  r e sponden t ' s  

motion f o r  r ehea r ing  i n  which he sought a new t r i a l ,  o r  t o  

declare a m i s t r i a l .  But t h e  r e f e r e e  w a s  so d i s t u r b e d  and 

d i s t r a c t e d  by t h e  l eng th  of t i m e  t o  hea r  t h i s  case, he 

gave no c o n s i d e r a t i o n  t o  respondent .  

The f i r s t  matter of  decep t ion  used by B a r  

counse l ,  BONNIE L. MAHON w a s  when she in t roduced  t h e  

Supplemental P e t i t i o n  fo r  Modi f ica t ion  which c a m e  about  a 

yea r  p r i o r  t o  t h e  t i m e  t h a t  respondent  f i l e d  another  

Supplemental P e t i t i o n  f o r  permanent ,per iodic  alimony, i n  

September of 1985.(R.AP. 48-51) The f i rs t  Supplemental 

P e t i t i o n  w a s  only  f o r  t h e  purpose of o b t a i n i n g  f o r  h e r  t h e  

m a r i t a l  home a s  lump-sum alimony, and which w a s  denied by 

t h e  court.(R.AP. 78-80) The o b j e c t  t h a t  B a r  counse l  MAHON 

wanted t h e  r e f e r e e  t o  t h i n k  w a s  t h a t  a l l  r e sponden t ' s  c l i e n t  

w a s  i n t e r e s t e d  i n  w a s  o b t a i n i n g  t h e  mar i t a l  home as  lump- 

sum alimony so t h a t  t h e  l a t e r  P e t i t i o n  f o r  p e r i o d i c ,  permanent 

alimony would appear  t o  be something t h a t  r e sponden t ' s  c l i e n t  

w a s  n o t  i n t e r e s t e d  i n  o b t a i n i n g  f o r  h e r s e l f  and t h a t  it would 

l a t e r  l end  credence t o  h e r  tes t imony t h a t  she  d i d n ' t  know 
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anything a t  a l l  about  t h e  Complaint seeking t o  vo id  t h e  

o r d e r  i n  t h e  p a r t i t i o n  a c t i o n  which r e q u i r e d  h e r  t o  l i s t  

t h e  p rope r ty  wi th  a broker  or go t o  j a i l .  

p a r t  and p a r c e l  of t h e  s a m e  p l an  by B a r  counsel  t o  make 

it appear  as  though r e sponden t ' s  c l i e n t  knew noth ing  

about  t h e  e v e n t s  which occured a f t e r  August 2 6 ,  1985. 

These matters ,  are ,  of cou r se ,  t i e d  i n  wi th  t h e  BISHOP 

case i n  which respondent  r ep re sen ted  t h e  wi fe .  Perhaps,  

t h a t  i s  where t h e  referee decided t h a t  t h e  Complaint 

( a g a i n s t  t h e  v a r i o u s  defendants  f o r  d e c l a r a t o r y  r e l i e f  

i n  o rde r  t o  n u l l i f y  t h e  o r d e r  of August 2 6 ,  1985) ,  came 

wi th  no knowledge t o  r e sponden t ' s  c l i e n t .  H e ,  t h e  r e f e r e e  

concluding t h a t  such a c t i o n  as  taken t o  vo id  t h e  August 2 6 ,  

1985 o r d e r ,  w a s  done s o l e l y  by respondent  as a "vende t ta"  

and on ly  done o u t  of  " s p i t e . "  There i s  a b s o l u t e l y  no 

evidence i n  t h e  r eco rd  t o  o therwise  i n d i c a t e  t h a t  such 

a c t i o n  w a s  done f o r  e i t h e r  of t h o s e  purposes ,  it w a s  done 

as  s t a t e d  i n  t h e  tes t imony,  t o  n u l l i f y  t h a t  o rde r  because;  

f i r s t  of a l l ,  r e sponden t ' s  c l i e n t  i f  she  r e fused  t o  go 

through and h e l p  t h e  b r o k e r s e l l  t h e  home, she would be 

l i a b l e  t o  t h e  broker  f o r  breach of c o n t r a c t .  Secondly, 

a f t e r  it w a s  exp la ined  t o  r e sponden t ' s  c l i e n t  by res- 

pondent t h a t  she could  probably b id  h e r s e l f  and g e t  a 

b e t t e r  d e a l  i f  t h e  house w a s  s o l d  a t  p u b l i c  s a l e ,  t h a t  

she agreed  t o  s i g n  t h e  Complaint and proceed t o  a t t empt  

t o  have t h e  p rope r ty  s o l d  a t  a p u b l i c  sale as  t h e  a c t i o n  

I t  w a s  a l l  
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of p a r t i t i o n  w a s  des igned t o  do. The second and even 

m o r e  p r e j u d i c i a l  and u n f a i r  tes t imony used by B a r  

counsel  BONNIE L.  MAHON, concerns  t h e  p e r j u r e d  tes t i-  

mony of r e sponden t ' s  former c l i e n t ,  MERIAM BISHOP n /k /a  

SHROCK. I n  t h e  Complaint,  and i n  h e r  tes t imony a t  t h e  

t r i a l ,  s a i d  w i tnes s  s a i d  she  had no idea  t h a t  what w a s  

being prosecu ted  by her,was a l a w  s u i t ,  seeking thereby  

t o  i n d i c a t e  t h a t  s a i d  l i t i g a t i o n  f o r  d e c l a r a t o r y  juggment 

w a s  done t o t a l l y  respondent  and wi thout  h i s  c l i e n t ' s  

p a r t i c i p a t i o n ,  l e a d i n g  aga in  perhaps  t o  t h e  referee's 

c l a i m  t h a t  t h i s  w a s  a "vende t ta  and done o u t  of s p i t e " .  

Y e t ,  on February 2 4 ,  1989, a t  a d e p o s i t i o n  she t e s t i f i e d  

e n t i r e l y  contrary t o  t h a t  tes t imony a t  t h e  t r i a l .  I n  f a c t  

t h a t  Complaint i t s e l f  shows she s igned an acknowledgement 

t h a t  she had r ead  t h e  complaint  and it w a s  true.(R.AP. 6 7 )  

Th i s  i s  p e r j u r e d  tes t imony accord ing  t o  a l l  t h e  cases. She 

d i d  admit  dur ing  cross examination of h e r  a t  t h e  t r i a l  of 

A p r i l  6 ,  1989, t h a t  she had t e s t i f i e d  c o n t r a r i l y  t o  h e r  

perv ious  tes t imony on d i r e c t  examination and a t  t h e  

d e p o s i t i o n  of he r  February 2 4 ,  1989.(R.AP.124-129,T.T. 73-78) 

Pe r ju ry  i s  de f ined  by FS 837.021(1) a s  fol lows:  

"Whoever, i n  one or  m o r e  o f f i c i a l  
proceedings ,  w i l l f u l l y  makes t o  or  
more material  s t a t emen t s  under o a t h  
when i n  f a c t  t w o  o r  more s t a t emen t s  
c o n t r a d i c t  each o t h e r  i s  g u i l t y  of 
a f e lony  of  t h e  t h i r d  degree ,*  * *'I 

" O f f i c i a l  proceeding" i s  de f ined  under FS 837.011 

a s  fo l lows:  
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"(1) ' O f f i c i a l  proceeding '  means a 
proceeding heard ,  or  which may be 
or i s  r e q u i r e d  t o  be heard ,  be fo re  
a l eg i s l a t ive ,  j u d i c i a l ,  adminis t ra-  
t i v e ,  o r  o t h e r  governmmttal agency 
o r  o f f i c i a l  au tho r i zed  t o  t a k e  
evidence under o a t h ,  i nc lud ing  any 
r e f e r e e ,  master i n  chancery,  hea r ing  
examiner, commissioner, no t a ry  or  
o t h e r  person t ak inq  such tes t imony 
o r  a d e p o s i t i o n  i n  connect ion wi th  
any such proceedinq.  I' 

(Emphasis supp l i ed )  

That  she  t e s t i f i e d  and t h e  B a r ' s  Complaint 

a l l e g i n g  t h a t  h e r  tes t imony would be t h a t  she knew nothing 

about  t h e  s u i t  which she s t a r t e d ,  when she t e s t i f i e d  a t  t h e  

d e p o s i t i o n  a b s o l u t e l y  c o n t r a r i l y  t o  t h i s  tes t imony,  ( a l l  

according t o  t h e  d e f i n i t i o n s  of p e r j u r y  found i n  Chapter  

837 ) ,  should be enough! t o  show t h a t  t h e  B a r  knowingly used 

t h i s  tes t imony i n  an e f f o r t  t o  i n d i c a t e  t h a t  r e sponden t ' s  0 
c l i e n t  knew noth ing  about  what w a s  going on. Con t r ad i c to ry  

s t a t emen t s  cannot  both  be t r u e .  See BROWN v STATE 334 So.2d 

597(Fla .1976) .  The t h i r d  element used by B a r ' s  counsel  BONNIE 

L. MAHON w a s  t h e  u s e  of p r i o r  reprimands dur ing  t h e  t r i a l  of 

t h e  case on c r o s s  examination of respondent  r a t h e r  than  br ing-  

i n g  those  matters  t o  t h e  r e f e r e e ' s  a t t e n t i o n  a f t e r  a f i n d i n q  

of guilt.(R.AP.83-89,T.T. 117-113) I t  i s  s t a t e d  e lsewhere  i n  

t h i s  b r i e f ,  on page 21 ,  t h a t  t h e  B a r ' s  own Rules of D i s c i p l i n e ,  

i n d i c a t e s  t h a t  p r i o r  reprimands are t o  be r evea l ed  on ly  a f t e r  

a f i n d i n g  of g u i l t .  Th is  obviously  w a s  w r i t t e n  i n t o  t h e  Rules 

of D i s c i p l i n e  because of t h e  c r i m i n a l  r u l e s  a s  a p p l i c a b l e  t o  

r e v e a l i n g  p r i o r  c o n v i c t i o n s  of a defendant  on un re l a t ed  
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offenses du r ing  t h e  t r i a l  of t h e  p r i n c i p a l  cause .  This  

has  been expressed  i n  many cases and i n  one case c i t e d  

as  RANDALL v STATE O F  FLORIDA, 239 So.2d 81 (2  DCA 1 9 7 0 )  

where t h e  c o u r t  h e l d  t h a t  t h e  s e p a r a t e  o f f ense  i s  n o t  

r e l e v a n t  and has  no p r o b a t i v e  v a l u e ,  on page 82 of t h e  

op in ion  t h e  c o u r t  states:  

"Upon a c a r e f u l  r ead ing  of t h e  e n t i r e  
t r a n s c r i p t  of t h e  t r i a l  of t h i s  cause  
w e  can f i n d  no re levancy  of t h e  
s e p a r a t e  o f f e n s e  t o  t h e  i s s u e s  invol-  
ved i n  t h e  case being t r i e d .  The sole 
re levancy  of t h e  s e p a r a t e  o f f e n s e  
being t h e  bad c h a r a c t e r  of t h e  
a p p e l l a n t  f o r  h i s  p ropens i ty  t o  commit 
a c r i m e ,  t h e  judgment and sen tence  must 
be r eve r sed  and t h e  cause  remanded f o r  
a new t r i a l . "  

Matters such as  t h i s  have always been regarded 

as  ' incurable  i m p r o p r i e t i e s " .  See j a lso  L I V I N G S T O N  v STATE, 

1 4 0  F l a .  749(1939) ,  1 9 2  So. 327. This  evidence,  a l so  i n  

c i v i l  cases would be deemed i r r e v e l a n t  or  immaterial, which 

w a s  so o b j e c t e d  t o  du r ing  t h e  t r i a l  of t h i s  m a t t e r ,  and i f  

t h e  c o u r t  would t a k e  t h e  p o s i t i o n  t h a t  t h i s  r e a l l y  d o e s n ' t  

matter i n  a case of t h i s  s o r t  a g a i n s t  an a t t o r n e y ,  then  w e  

might as w e l l  throw away t h e  books as  concerns  lawyer 

d i s c i p l i n e .  N o t  only  d i d  B a r  counse l  r e f e r  t o  p r i o r  r e p r i -  

mands of t h e  respondent  du r ing  t h e  t r i a l ,  b u t  she f u r t h e r  

i n t ima ted  t h a t  he  had p r i o r  reprimands i n  t h e  S ta te  of 

Wisconsin, by ask ing  respondent  i f  he had p r i o r  reprimands 

whi le  p r a c t i c i n g  i n  t h e  Sta te  of Wisconsin, knowing f u l l  

w e l l .  t h a t  even if t h i s  w e r e  so t h a t  it would have no th ing  
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t o  do wi th  r e sponden t ' s  conduct  p r a c t i c i n g  here  I kn 1 t h e  

Sta te  of F l o r i d a ,  which i s  an e n t i r e l y  s e p a r a t e  j u r i s -  

d i c t i o n  from t h i s  one. By ask ing  t h e  q u e s t i o n ,  she  

i n t ima ted  t o  t h e  referee t h a t  d e s p i t e  r e sponden t ' s  d e n i a l ,  

he probably w a s  h i d i n g  t h e  f a c t  t h a t  he had been d i s c i p l i n e d  

i n  t h e  State of Wisconsin. 

Speaking b r i e f l y  t o  t h e  p r i o r  reprimands,  t h a t  

respondent  h a s  had; t h e  one i n  1984  w a s  o r i g i n a l l y  found by 

t h e  referee t o  have n o t  v i o l a t e d  any d i s c i p l i n a r y  r u l e  a t  

a l l .  H o w e v e r ,  The F l o r i d a  B a r  would n o t  rest wi th  t h a t  f i n d-  

i n g  so they  f i l e d  a p e t i t i o n  f o r  review wi th  t h i s  c o u r t .  This  

c o u r t  d e s p i t e  t h e  f i n d i n g  of n o t  g u i l t y  by t h e  r e f e r e e ,  d i d  

reverse t h e  r e f e r e e  and found t h e  respondent  g u i l i t y  of a 

c o n f l i c t  of i n t e r e s t .  B r i e f l y ,  t h e  f a c t s  i n  t h a t  case showed 

t h a t  respondent  had accep ted  a r e t a i n e r  from one of t h e  bene- 

f i c i a r i e s  under a w i l l  t o  p r o t e c t h e r  i n t e r e s t s  from h e r  o t h e r  

s i b l i n g s .  This  w a s  be fo re  respondent  became a t t o r n e y  f o r  t h e  

estate .  T h e r e a f t e r ,  a series of misunders tandings  occured 

and even though respondent  gave t h i s  b e n e f i c i a r y  back t h e  

r e t a i n e r ,  t h e r e  n e v e r t h e l e s s  w a s  a c o n f l i c t  of i n t e r e s t  which 

arose a t  t h e  t i m e  t h a t  respondent  d i d  i n  f a c t  become a t t o r n e y  

f o r  t h e  estate.  Even though respondent  d i d  g i v e  back t h e  

r e t a i n e r  t o  t h a t  b e n e f i c i a r y  of t h e  w i l l  who wanted p r o t e c t i o n ,  

a f t e r  he became a t t o r n e y  f o r  t h e  es ta te ,  s t i l l ,  t h e r e  w a s  t h a t  

t e c h n i c a l  c o n f l i c t  of i n t e r e s t  which respondentdid  have and he 

admi ts  t h a t  he should have given t h e  r e t a i n e r  back,  immediately 

0 
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a f t e r  he  w a s  s e l e c t e d  a s  a t t o r n e y  f o r  t h e  estate.  There 

w a s ,  I suppose, a t e c h n i c a l  v i o l a t i o n ,  b u t  when you are 

i n  a series of t r a n s a c t i o n s  it i s  d i f f i c u l t  t o  know 

e x a c t l y  when you, as  a lawyer,  should a t t empt  t o  r e p a i r  

damage which occurs .  The o t h e r  matter which occured i n  

1983  w a s  a series of 5 ,  ( 2  d i s m i s s e d ) ,  t o t a l l y  inconse-  

q u e n t i a l  matters  t h a t  t h e  gr ievance  committee i n  P i n e l l a s  

County brought ,  t h e  t o t a l i t y  of which concerned matters 

which should have been d i smissed  b u t  which w e r e  no t  

because respondent  a t  t h a t  t i m e  knew l i t t l e  about  g r ievance  

matters and f e l t  t h a t  a p u b l i c  reprimand d i d  n o t  c a l l  f o r  

him t o  t a k e  an appea l  relat ive the reo .  A f t e r  a l l ,  it w a s  

r e sponden t ' s  f i r s t  reprimand, even though undeserved and 

t h e  m a t t e r  never  d i d  g e t  beyond t h e  referee. 

A l l  of t h e  matters expressed  i n  h e r e  r e l a t ive  

t o  t h e  u n f a i r  t r i a l  p e r p e t r a t e d  by Bar counse l ,  taken s i n g l y ,  

perhaps  might be viewed as  an hones t  mis take ,  b u t  cumulat ively  

viewed it shows a c a l c u l a t e d  e f f o r t  by B a r  counse l  t o  pre -  

d u c i a l l y  a t t a c k  respondent  i n  t h e  m o s t  u n f a i r  manner p o s s i b l e .  

EC 7-26 states: 

" t h e  l a w  and d i s c i p l i n a r y  r u l e s  
p r o h i b i t  t h e  u se  of f r a u d u l e n t ,  
f a l s e  o r  p e r j u r e d  tes t imony or 
evidence.  A lawyer who knowingly 
p a r t i c i p a t e s  * * * i s  s u b j e c t  t o  
d i s c i p l i n e " .  
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ISSUE 111: 

AS TO THE BISHOP CASE, D I D  RESPONDENT VIOLATE DR 7- 102 

( A )  (1) and DR 7 - 1 0 2 ( A )  ( 2 ) ?  

Despi te  t h e  o t h e r  v i o l a t i o n s  which w e r e  c i t e d  

by t h e  referee i n  h i s  r e p o r t ,  such as DR 1 - 1 0 2 ( A ) ( l ) ,  a 

lawyer " s h a l l  n o t  v i o l a t e  a d i s c i p l i n a r y  r u l e " ,  DR 1- 102  

(A)  ( 5 )  , DR 1 - 1 0 2 ( A )  ( 6 )  which are "engaging i n  conduct  pre-  

j u d i c i a l  t o  t h e  a d m i n i s t r a t i o n  of j u s t i c e  and engaging i n  

o t h e r  conduct  adve r se ly  r e f l e c t i n g  on h i s  f i t n e s s  t o  p r a c t i c e  

l a w " ,  t h e  referee d i d  n o t  rest h i s  op in ion  on any of t hose  

o t h e r  matters ,  b u t  s o l e l y  s e l e c t e d  D r  7 - 1 0 2 ( A )  (1) and 

DR 7 - 1 0 2 ( A )  ( 2 )  t o  suppor t  h i s  p o s i t i o n ,  According t o  him and 

as  he s t a t e d  on t h e  r eco rd ,  t h a t  i f  Judge Walker had pe r sona l  

j u r i s d i c t i o n  over  respondent  ' s  c l i e n t  and s u b j e c t  m a t t e r  

j u r i s d i c t i o n ,  any l a w  s u i t  commenced a g a i n s t  s a i d  judge,  with-  

o u t  any th ing  f u r t h e r ,  amounted t o  unwarranted l i t i g a t i o n .  

(R.AP.  89,T.T.113) That  w a s  t h e  r e f e r e e ' s  sole conc lus ion .  

Where he came t o  conclude i n  h i s  r e p o r t  t h a t  t h i s  a c t i o n  by 

r e sponden t ' s  c l i e n t  was simply a "vende t ta"  o r  a matter of 

" s p i t e "  commenced by respondent  a g a i n s t  Judge Walker and t h e  

o t h e r  p a r t i e s  came from, respondent  i s  unable  t o  f i n d  anyth ing  

i n  t h e  tes t imony or t h e  e x h i b i t s  a t  t h e  t r i a l  which so 

i n d i c a t e d .  N o r  w a s  t h e r e  any such tes t imony which i n d i c a t e d  

t h a t  s a i d  Complaint w a s  f i l e d  merely t o  h a r r a s s  opposing 

counse l ,  etc.  N o r  w a s  t h e r e  anyth ing  i n  any of t h e  tes t imony 

which i n d i c a t e d  t h a t  t h e  l a w  s u i t  as  f i l e d  w a s  t o  i n t i m i d a t e  
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anyone i n t o  n o t  moving forward wi th  t h e  p a r t i t i o n  a c t i o n .  

Those matters  are f igments  of t h e  r e f e r e e ' s  imaginat ion 

or  a t w i s t e d  a t t empt  by him t o  f i t  t h i s  matter i n t o  some 

k ind  of a d i s c i p l i n a r y  r u l e .  

Taking t h e  matters  as they  occured,  an o r d e r  

w a s  e n t e r e d  February 2 6 ,  1985 by t h e  Honorable DAVID SETH 

WALKER which s t a t e d  t h a t  t h e  p a r t i e s  s t i p u l a t e d  t o  sel l  t h e  

p rope r ty  ( t h e  mar i t a l  home) by p r i v a t e  sale .  A l l  t h a t  o r d e r  

d i d  w a s  t o  conf i rm t h e  f a c t  t h e  p a r t i e s  agreed t o  such an 

arrangement. Respondent 's  c l i e n t  f o r  one reason  or  ano the r  

f e l t  j u s t i f i e d  n o t  going a long  wi th  t h e  agreement because of 

t h e  a p p r a i s a l s  which w e r e  i n a c c u r a t e  according t o  h e r ,  l ead-  

i n g  t o  t h e  o r d e r  of Judge DAVIS  SETH WALKER pursuant  t o  a 

hea r ing  h e l d  August 9 ,  1985 i n  which he o r a l l y  o r d e r  

r e sponden t ' s  c l i e n t  t o  s i g n  a l i s t i n g  agreement by August 1 6 ,  

1985 o r  she  would go t o  j a i l .  This  o r d e r  w a s  s igned "nunc 

p r o  tunc"  on August 2 6 ,  1985. Respondent a f t e r  l e a r n i n g  i n  

l a t e  September, 1985 t h a t  h i s  c l i e n t  had indeed s igned t h e  

l i s t i n g  agreement, b u t  w a s  n o t  coope ra t ing  wi th  t h e  broker  

i n  s e l l i n g  t h e  house,  adv ised  h i s  c l i e n t  when she c a m e  t o  

h i s  o f f i c e  that h e r  on ly  r e l i e f  a t  t h i s  t i m e ,  i f  she  d i d  n o t  

want t o  coope ra t e  and se l l  t h e  home w a s  t o  a t t empt  t o  g e t  

t h e  l i s t i n g  agreement i t s e l f  dec l a red  vo id  because she 

s igned  it under d u r e s s  which w a s  brought  about  by t h e  c o u r t ' s  

o r d e r  of August 2 6 ,  1985 which respondent  viewed as  vo id .  

And, t o  a t t empt  t o  g e t  t h e  matter back on t h e  proper  t r a c k  f o r  
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- p a r t i t i o n  purposes ,  t h a t  i s ,  f o r  a p u b l i c  sale of t h e  

m a r i t a l  home. Be l iev ing  t h a t  a p u b l i c  sale of t h e  mar i t a l  

home would be m o r e  i n  c l i e n t ' s  i n t e r e s t ,  a t  which she 

could  be a b idde r  a t  such sale and perhaps  o b t a i n  t h e  

p rope r ty  a t  a much lower f i g u r e ,  because she w a s  a l r e a d y  a 

h a l f  owner i n  s a i d  p rope r ty .  She thereupon t o l d  respondent  

t o  go ahead wi th  such pape r s ,  and they  w e r e  p repared  and 

s igned  by h e r  September 2 7 ,  1985, c o n s i s t i n g  of t w o  coun t s ,  

t h e  f i rs t  count  f o r  d e c l a r a t o r y  r e l i e f ,  ask ing  t h a t  t h e  

c o u r t  d e c l a r e  t h e  l i s t i n g  agreement vo id ,  because it w a s  

s igned under d u r e s s  under a c o u r t  o r d e r  be l i eved  t o  be vo id ,  

and COUNT I1 an a c t i o n  f o r  damages a g a i n s t  t h e  o t h e r  p a r t i e s  

involved,  fo r  c l i e n t ' s  emot ional  d i s t r e s s .  A t  t h a t  t i m e ,  

t h e  t i m e  f o r  appea l  had exp i r ed ,  and she had no o t h e r  a b i l i t y  

t o  tes t  t h i s  order of Judge Walker 's  u n l e s s  it w a s  through 

t h e  v e h i c l e  of t h e  Complaint of September 2 7 ,  1985. 

- 

According t o  t h e  r e f e r e e  h e r e ,  and upon which he 

s o l e l y  based h i s  r e p o r t  w a s  t h a t  t h e  a c t i o n  as  brought  

September 2 7 ,  1985 w a s  "without  m e r i t " ,  w a s  on t h e  b a s i s  t h a t  

i f  t hecour t  had j u r i s d i c t i o n  over t h e  s u b j e c t  matter and t h e  

person,  t h e  judge could  make any o r d e r  t h a t  he wanted t o  do 

and it would be lawful .  This  p l a i n l y ,  i s  n o t  t r u e ,  whi le  t h e  

judge on t h i s  case i n i t i a l l y  d i d  have j u r i s d i c t i o n  over  t h e  

s u b j e c t  and over  t h e  p a r t i e s ,  t h e  on ly  j u r i s d i c t i o n  g ran ted  

t o  him under Chapter  6 4 ,  FS, w a s  t o  se l l  t h e  p rope r ty  a t  

p u b l i c  sale.  I n  e f f e c t  what w a s  e n t e r e d  February 2 6 ,  1985, 
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c a l l e d  " F i n a l  Judgment i n  Complaint f o r  P a r t i t i o n  of 

R e a l  P roper ty" ,  w a s  n o t  an o r d e r ,  b u t  merely conf i rming 

t h e  f a c t  t h a t  t h e  p a r t i e s  had agreed a t  t h a t  t i m e  t o  

sell  t h e  p rope r ty  by p r i v a t e  sale.  I t  w a s  f u r t h e r  s t a t e d  

i n  such judgment t h a t  i n  t h e  even t  t h a t  t h e  p rope r ty  i s  

n o t  s o l d  by t h e  end of a six-months p e r i o d ,  judgment of 

p a r t i t i o n  would be e n t e r e d  and t h e  p rope r ty  s o l d  by p u b l i c  

sale.  (R.AP.52-53) See paragraph 4 t h e r e o f .  Respondent, 

b e l i e v i n g  t h a t  i n  t h e  f i r s t  i n s t a n c e  t h a t  t h i s  f i n a l  judg- 

ment amounted t o  no th ing  m o r e  t han  an agreement of t h e  

p a r t i e s  t o  sel l  t h e  p rope r ty  by p r i v a t e  sale and t h a t  

paragraph 4 appeared t o  l i s t  t h e  only  s a n c t i o n s  i n  t h e  

even t  t h e  p rope r ty  w a s  n o t  s o l d  a t  t h e  end of six-months 

pe r iod ,  w a s  shocked when t h e  Judge on t h e  case, DAVID SETH 

WALKER, o rdered  r e sponden t ' s  c l i e n t  t o  s i g n  a l i s t i n g  agree-  

ment by August 1 6 ,  1985 o r  go t o  j a i l .  

through an opposing a t t o r n e y  t h a t  h i s  c l i e n t  had indeed 

s igned  a l i s t i n g  agreement, b u t  w a s  r e f u s i n g  t o  coopera te  i n  

s e l l i n g  t h e  p rope r ty ,  o b t a i n i n g  from t h e  opposing a t t o r n e y  a 

motion which i n  e f f e c t  would cause  h i s  c l i e n t  t o  v a c a t e  t h e  

home, caused t h e  Complaint i n  q u e s t i o n  t o  be f i l e d .  

Learning l a te r  

Respondent be l i eved  then ,  and he does  now, t h a t  

Judge DAVID SETH WALKER w a s  wi thout  power t o  o r d e r  h i s  c l i e n t  

t o  go t o  j a i l  u n l e s s  she s igned t h e  l i s t i n g  agreement. 

There i s  no q u e s t i o n  t h a t  t h e  c o u r t  may punish 

f o r  contempt, e i t h e r  by d i r e c t  contempt which occurs i n  t h e  
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0 presence  of t h e  c o u r t  o r  i n d i r e c t  contempt where a p a r t y  

d i sobeys  a v a l i d  c o u r t  o r d e r .  Obviously, t h e  contempt 

h e r e  w a s  n o t  d i r e c t  contempt, so t h e r e f o r e  it can only 

be c l a s s i f i e d  as i n d i r e c t  contempt b u t  t h a t  b r i n g s  up t h e  

ques t ion  of whether t h i s  w a s  a v a l i d  c o u r t  o r d e r ,  and 

r ead ing  it, it appears  t o  be no th ing  m o r e  than  t o  conf i rm 

what t h e  p a r t i e s  had agreed t o  do,  and n o t  a c o u r t  o r d e r  

i n  t h e  sense  t h a t  t h e  judge ordered  t h e  p rope r ty  t o  be 

s o l d  a t  a p r i v a t e  sale,  which of cou r se ,  he could  n o t  do 

i n  t h e  f i r s t  p l a c e .  I f  he had ordered  t h e  p rope r ty  sold 

by p r i v a t e  sale,  obvious ly ,  t h a t  would n o t  be a v a l i d  

c o u r t  o r d e r  because he  would n o t  have had t h e  power t o  do 

t h a t  under FS 6 4 .  I f  you cannot  do it d i r e c t l y  t hen  you 

cannot  do it i n d i r e c t l y  such as  t h i s  document of February 2 6 ,  

1985 i s  concerned. You cannot  do i n d i r e c t l y  what you are 

p r o h i b i t e d  from doing d i r e c t l y .  Besides ,  s a i d  judgment 

of February 2 6 ,  1985, c a r r i e d  t h e  on ly  s a n c t i o n  i n  case t h e  

p rope r ty  w a s  n o t  s o l d  i n  a six-months pe r iod ,  t o  w i t ,  t h a t  

t h e  p rope r ty  would be s o l d  a t  a p u b l i c  sale. 

Therefore ,  by such reasoning ,  respondent  w a s  

l e d  i r r e s i s t i b l y  t o  t h e  conc lus ion  t h a t  t h e  judge on t h e  

matter had exposed himself  t o  c i v i l  l i a b i l i t y  because he  w a s  

t o t a l l y  wi thout  j u r i s d i c t i o n  t o  f i n d  r e sponden t ' s  c l i e n t  i n  

contempt. That  t h e  c o u r t ' s  f i n d i n g  of contempt w a s  wholly 

void .  Judges may be sued where they  ac t  wholly wi thout  j u r i s -  

d i c t i o n  even though t h e r e  may be s u b j e c t  and pe r sona l  
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j u r i s d i c t i o n .  There i s  no j u d i c i a l  immunity where a 

judge ac t s  "wholly wi thout  j u r i s d i c t i o n .  I' The judge 

knows o r  i s  bound t o  know t h a t  on t h e  f a c t s  t h e  c o u r t  

over  which he p r e s i d e s  has  no j u r i s d i c t i o n  i n  t h e  cause ,  

he proceeds  a t  h i s  p e r i l .  See FARISH v SMOTH, 58 So.2d 

534 (Fla .1952) .  

S imi l a r  t o  t h e  case i n  hand i s  FARRAGUT v 

TAMPA, 2 2  So.2d 645(Fla.1945) where t h e  c o u r t  h e l d  t h a t  

i n  absence of l e g i s l a t i v e  a u t h o r i t y ,  a judge of t h e  former 

municipal  c o u r t  had no power t o  i s s u e  a search  war ran t .  

Here, as  t h e r e , t h e r e  w a s  no l e g i s l a t i v e  a u t h o r i t y  i n  Judge 

WALKER t o  a l l o w  him under Chapter  6 4  FS t o  o r d e r  t h a t  t h e  

p rope r ty  involved be s o l d  a t  a p r i v a t e  sale.  

That  o t h e r  cases i n  F l o r i d a  enunc ia t ing  t h e  

above p r i n c i p l e ,  are HARPER v MERCKEL, 638 F, 2d 848(5 U.S. 

C.A. 1981) ,  STATE v MONTGOMERY, 467 So.2d 387(1  DCA 1 9 7 9 )  

0 

and a h o s t  of o t h e r  c a s e s .  N o r ,  i s  t h e r e  anyth ing  wrong 

wi th  t ak ing  a c o l l a t e r a l  a t t a c k  on t h i s  contempt matter, 

where w e  f i n d  t h e  fo l lowing  language on page 1067  i n  1 2  

ALR 2d 53: 

' I *  * * t h e  r u l e  may be s a i d  t o  be 
f i r m l y  e s t a b l i s h e d  t h a t  a c o u r t  
does  n o t  pos ses s  t h e  r i g h t  or  power 
t o  punish a s  f o r  contempt a d i s r e g a r d  
or  v i o l a t i o n  of i t s  o r d e r  * * * with-  
o u t  power or  a u t h o r i t y  t o  render  t h e  
p a r t i c u l a r  dec ree  * * *. Lack of such 
* * * power * * * m a y  be r a i s e d  * * * 
i n  a col la tera l  proceeding* * * . ' I  

(Emphas supp l i ed )  
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Even i f  respondent ,  a f t e r  a f u l l  hea r ing  

and t r i a l ,  etc.  d i d  n o t  p r e v a i l  i n  t h e  matter,  and i f  it 

would have been found t h a t  Judge WALKER d i d  ac t  w i t h  

j u r i s d i c t i o n ,  even t h e  CANONS OF ETHICS,  suppor t s  res- 

pondent i n  t h e  a c t i o n  which w a s  taken because it is  s t a t e d  

under CANON 7 under E t h i c a l  Cons idera t ion ,  EC 7-4: 

"The advocate  may urge  any pe rmis s ib l e  
c o n s t r u c t i o n  of t h e  l a w  f avo rab le  t o  
h i s  c l i e n t ,  wi thout  r ega rd  t o  h i s  
p r o f e s s i o n a l  op in ion  as t o  t h e  l i k e l i -  
hood t h a t  t h e  c o n s t r u c t i o n  w i l l  
u l t i m a t e l y  p r e v a i l .  H i s  conduct  * * * 
i s  pe rmis s ib l e  * * * i f  suppor tab le  by 
good f a i t h  argument* * *Ir 

(Emphasis supp l i ed )  
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ISSUE I V :  

WERE THE COSTS ASSESSED AGAINST RESPONDENT ERRONEOUS? 

I t  i s  submit ted t h a t  t h e  costs a s se s sed  a g a i n s t  

respondent  i n  t h e  sum of $2,052.80 are erroneous because t h e  

a u t h o r i t y  t o  t a x  costs, as  w e  have seen are based e n t i r e l y  

upon t h e  language as found under I n t e g r a t i o n  Rule 1 1 . 0 4  ( 9 )  ( 5 )  

and under t h e  new D i s c i p l i n a r y  Rules 3 - 7 . 5 ( k ) ( 5 ) ,  which are 

e x a c t l y  t h e  same,all  as  r e l a t e d  t o  t h i s  m a t t e r  which w a s  

t r i e d  A p r i l  6 ,  1989. Except f o r  a modest r educ t ion  of $ 1 6 . 7 0  

t h e  r e f e r e e  adopted B a r  c o u n s e l ' s  Second Amended Sta tement  of 

C o s t s  verbat im.  Under such costs, t h e  t o t a l  came t o  $2,069.50. 

B a r  counse l  even used decept ion  on c o s t s ,  because she ,  i n  h e r  

i n i t i a l  s t a t emen t  on costs  l i s t e d  t h e  a d m i n i s t r a t i v e  expense as  

$ 5 0 0 . 0 0 ,  when she  knew t h a t  a l l  t h e  I n t e g r a t i o n  Rules and t h e  

new D i s c i p l i n a r y  Rules on ly  al lowed t h e  sum of $150 .00  a t  t h e  

g r i evance  level  and $ 1 5 0 . 0 0  a t  t h e  r e f e r e e  level .  F u r t h e r ,  i n  

h e r  p re l imina ry  s t a t emen t  of costs  on t h e  4 th  page the reo f  she 

a t tempted t o  charge " s t a f f  i n v e s t i g a t o r  expenses" of some 

$540.85. She skates on page 2 1  of t h e  May 1, 1989 hea r ing  as  

follows:(R.AP. 130- 133)  

"MS. Mahon; Y e s ,  as  f a r  as t h e  r u l e s  
t h a t  are i n  e f f e c t ,  M r .  McKenzie i s  
correct as  f a r  as t h e  o l d  r u l e s ,  t h e  
I n t e g r a t i o n  Rules ,  which w e r e  i n  
e f f e c t  p r i o r  t o  January,  1987. 

However, t h o s e  r u l e s  on ly  go - - 
t hose  r u l e s  are,  i n  e f f e c t ,  f o r  vio- 
l a t i o n  of t h e  r u l e s ,  s p e c i f i c a l l y ,  t h e  
D R ' s  or t h e  i n t e g r a t i o n  r u l e s .  
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And ,  on page 

A n d ,  then on 

A f t e r  seeing 

i n v e s t i g a t o r  

A s  f a r  as procedura l ly ,  w e  go under 
t h e  new r u l e s .  I n  o the r  words, w e  
go under t h e  o l d  r u l e s  f o r  M r .  
McKenzie a s  f o r  what r u l e s  he vio-  
lated,  bu t  a s  f a r  a s  procedural 
c o s t s  and those types  of ma t t e r s ,  
w e  go under t h e  new r u l e s *  * *"  
2 2  the reof ,  continuing: 

"MS. Mahon: Both of those a r e  
c o r r e c t  i f  you w e r e  t o  go under t h e  
o l d  r u l e s  it - - M r .  McKenzie would 
be c o r r e c t .  

However, it i s  m y  p o s i t i o n  t h a t  t h e  
new r u l e s  apply a s  f a r  as c o s t s  a r e  
concerned M r .  McKenzie. - - 'I  

page 20 of t h a t  hearing she s t a t e s  t h e  following: 

" L e t  m e  expla in  a l i t t l e  b i t  f u r t h e r .  
A s  fa r  a s  t h e  i n v e s t i g a t o r s  expenses 
a r e  concerned t h a t  d i d n ' t  go go j u s t  
t h e  depos i t ions .  

That went t o  serv ing  of subpoenas and 
br inging subpoenas t o  t h e  referee t o  
have h i m  s i g n ,  and going over and 
having them interviewing wi tnesses ,  
s p e c i f i c a l l y ,  M r s .  Shrock, e t  c e t e r a . "  

t h a t  she was los ing  he r  argument on t h e  s t a f f  

c o s t s ,  she on page 3 4  of s a i d  hearing stated: 

"MS. Mahon: That type - - our i n v e s t i -  
g a t o r s  do it, and w e  include it as 
i n v e s t i g a t o r s  c o s t s  because they g e t  
our subpoenas signed by you and serve  
them. Can w e  charge f o r  those c o s t s ?  

T h e  Court: Y e s . "  

Thereaf te r ,  s a i d  "Staf f  I n v e s t i g a t o r  Expenses" became under 

those s a m e  s t a f f  i n v e s t i g a t o r  expenses now called "Staf f  

I n v e s t i g a t o r  Expenses of E r n e s t  J .  K i r s t e i n ,  Jr. f o r  Processing 

and Service of Subpoenas and of Joseph McFadden" i n  both t h e  

Amended Statement of Costs and Second Amended S t a t e m e n t  of Costs.  
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